
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
DATE:  August 2, 2023 
TIME:  9:00 a.m. 
PLACE: Polk County Courthouse, Dallas, Oregon 
 

THE LOCATION OF THIS MEETING IS ADA ACCESSIBLE. PLEASE ADVISE THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS AT (503-623-8173), AT LEAST 24 HOURS IN ADVANCE, OF ANY SPECIAL 

ACCOMMODATIONS NEEDED TO ATTEND OR TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIRTUALLY. 

 
PAGE:         AGENDA ITEMS 
 
  1. CALL TO ORDER AND NOTE OF ATTENDANCE 

  
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
(a) Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 

Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principal 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, the Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda.  The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00am on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon. 
 

(b) The Polk County Board of Commissioners will be attending a lunch and learn meeting with the Polk 
County District Attorney’s office on August 1, 2023, located at 820 SE Church St Ste 100, Dallas 
Oregon. 
 

(c) The Homeless Prevention Advisory Council will be meeting on August 9, 2023 from 12:00 pm to 1:30 
pm located in the first floor conference room at 182 SW Academy St, Dallas Oregon, 97338. 
 
 

 
 

  3. COMMENTS (for items not on this agenda and limited to 3 minutes) 

  4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

  5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM July 26, 2023 

  6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 

  7. RECLASSIFICATION OF AN EMPLOYEE – Matt Hawkins 

 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
        

(a) Polk County Contract No. 23-162, The City of Falls City IGA 
(Morgan Smith, County Counsel) 
 

(b) Polk County Contract No. 23-163, Service Contract 
(Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 
 

   (b)   Polk County Contract No. 23-164, Service Contract 
    (Rosana Warren, Public Health) 
    
   (c)   Polk County Contract No. 23-165, Service Contract 
    (Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 
 

(d)   Right of Way Dedication Acceptance, Weyerhaueser Timber Holdings, Inc 
 (Todd Whitaker, Public Works Director) 

 
(e)   Polk Count Resolution No. 23-11, in the matter declaring the necessity of acquiring 

  Property for the Black Rock Road Improvement Project 
 (Morgan Smith, County Counsel) 

 

 

                              THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS WILL MEET IN EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 PURSUANT TO ORS 192.660. 
 
  ADJOURNMENT 



 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MINUTES July 26, 2023  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & ATTENDANCE 

At 9:00 a.m., Commissioner Gordon declared the meeting of the Polk County Board of Commissioners 
to be in session. Commissioner Mordhorst and Commissioner Pope were present. 
 
Staff present: Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer 
  Morgan Smith, County Counsel 
   
          
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 
Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principle 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, The Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda. The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00 a.m. on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon.  
 
The Polk County Board of Commissioners will be attending a lunch and learn meeting with the Polk 
County District Attorney’s office on August 1, 2023, located at 820 SE Church St Ste 100, Dallas 
Oregon. 
 

 
3. COMMENTS 
 None. 
 

 
4.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER POPE SECONDED, 
TO APPROVE THE AGENDA. 

 
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD.  
 
 
5.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF BOARD MEETING OF July 19, 2023 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER POPE MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST SECONDED, 
TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF July 19, 2023. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 
6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER POPE SECONDED, 
TO APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 
7. POLK COUNTY CLERK APPOINTMENT & ORDER NO. 23-10 

   Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer, presented to the Board Order No. 23-10 and a 
Memorandum that is recommending that the Board approve and sign Order No. 23-10 in the 
matter of appointing Kim Williams as the new County Clerk for Polk County, effective October 
1, 2023. Mr. Hansen reminded the Board and staff that Mrs. Williams came before the Board 
on July 25, 2023 to introduce herself to the public and answer any questions that the Board may 
have. 



July 26, 2023 
Page 2 

 

  

 
MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER POPE SECONDED, 

TO APPROVE AND SIGN ORDER NO. 23-10. 
      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 
 
8. OR:18 – FORTHILL ROAD TO AR FORD ROAD 
 Brennan Burbank, ODOT, went over a presentation for the OR 18 Forthill Road to AR Ford 

Road Project. The presentation went over background information, the concept development 
and selection of preferred concept, public outreach and community engagement and what the 
next steps will be for this project. The presentation showed that the purpose of this project is to 
enhance safety, reduce congestions, and improve mobility. Commissioner Mordhorst talked 
about the background of Grand Ronde Road and wanted to emphasize how important it is to 
get the heavy truck traffic on a safer route and to use the interchange instead of Grand Ronde 
Road. Commissioner Gordon asked what changes have been made to make that happen. Mr. 
Burbank answered his question. Commissioner Pope asked how many more bridges are in this 
plan and Mr. Burbank stated he doesn’t have the exact number but it is in the range of 3-4 new 
bridges that will be owned and operated by ODOT. Commissioner Gordon stated that he 
appreciates that ODOT is committed to gathering the funds for this project and asked how is 
this being memorialized. Mr. Burbank answered his question.  

 
 
9.  HWY 22 & HWY 51 INTERCHANGE 

Kumar Rethnasamy, ODOT Project Manager and Ed Chamberland, David Evans Project 
Manager, presented a power point to the Board of Commissioners and staff that went over 
the OR 22: Rickreall Road to Doaks Ferry Road NW Project. Their presentation provided 
background information on this project, where they are now in the project timeline and the 
current design options for interchange options and access road options. Mr. Rethnasamy 
went over the open house event that was held on July 12, 2023 and shared the feedback 
that was received from the public. Commissioner Pope asked how much money is left in 
the key account for this project. Mr. Rethnasamy stated there is about $5 million. 
Commissioner Mordhorst asked Mr. Rethnasamy to go back to the interloop options and 
wanted to share his concerns he has with the options presented and which options he felt 
would be best for the community. Commissioner Gordon asked if anyone from the public 
had any questions for Mr. Rethnasamy and several members of the public shared their 
input and their support for the project.  

  
 
 
The following items were approved by Motion under 5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

(a)               Polk County Contract No. 23-154, Oregon Youth Authority 
(Jodi Merritt, Community Corrections Director) 
 

   (b)   Polk County Contract No. 23-155, Oregon Youth Authority 
    (Jodi Merritt, Community Corrections Director) 
    
   (c)   Polk County Contract No. 23-156, Oregon Health Authority 
    (Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 
 
   (d)   Polk County Contract No. 23-157, Oregon Health Authority 
    (Rosana Warren, Behavioral Health) 
 
   (e)  New Job Specification and Wage, School Based Mental Health 

Supervisor 
    (Matt Hawkins, Admin Services Director) 
 
    
 



July 26, 2023 
Page 3 

 

  

 
   (f)  Polk County Resolution No. 23-10, in the matter of declaring the 

necessity of acquiring property for the Black Rock Road 
Improvement Project  

    (Morgan Smith, County Counsel) 

 
 
There no need for an executive session and Commissioner Gordon adjourned the meeting 
at 10:15 a.m. 
 
 

 

  
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
       

        

 Jeremy Gordon, Chair   
 
 

                                                       
    Craig Pope, Commissioner 

        
                 
         
         Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 
 
 
 
 
Minutes: Nicole Pineda  
Approved: August 2, 2023 



HUMAN RESOURCES

POLK COUNTY POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE * DALLAS, OREGON 97338-3T74
(503) 623-1888 *FAx (503) 623-1889

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Commissioners

FROM: Matt Hawkins, Admin. Services Director

DATE: Iuly 21,2023

SUBJECT: Reclassification of a Juvenile Probation Officer I

Wednesday - August 2,2023 (5 minutes)

RECOMMENDATION:
fhe Board of Commissioners approve the reclassification of a Juvenile Probation Officer I.

ISSUE:
Shall the Board approve the reclassifications?

DISCUSSION:
It is r".o--*ded that Tim Williams be reclassified from a Juvenile Probation Officer I to a Juvenile

Probation Officer II. Jodi Menitt has reported that Tim has done an "exceptional job" during the past

18 months he has been employed with Polk County in the position of Juvenile Probation Officer I.

This reclassification is in line with prior history of reclassi$ing a Juvenile Probation Officer I after

they demonstrate the ability to be proficient in the position.

Tim is currently at step 2 of the Juvenile Probation Officer I position which is $4,716' If the

reclassification is approved he will move to step 1 of the Juvenile Probation Officer II position which is

$5,102.

Should the reclassification be approved it would be effective August I,2023.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Thir t".t"5ifr*tion will have an impact on the budget for FY 22-23 of approximately $6,000

including PERS contribution should it be for 12 months.



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
Page 1 of 5

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is entered into between Polk County, Oregon, hereinafter referred to as COUNTY, and 
City of Falls City, hereinafter referred to as CITY. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS CITY and COUNTY desire to work cooperatively on the Federal Lands Access Project 
(FLAP) with Western Federal Lands Highway Division, FHWA to reconstruct and pave Mitchell Street 
(CITY jurisdiction) and Black Rock Road (COUNTY jurisdiction); and the replacement of the Little 
Luckiamute Bridge.  

WHEREAS the FLAP (PROJECT) will convert the gravel portion of Mitchell Street to pavement; 
convert a portion of Black Rock Road from gravel to pavement, widen the existing roadways and 
replace the County bridge over the Little Luckiamute River. 

Therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained herein, the parties hereto 
agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I - SCOPE OF WORK   

COUNTY agrees to perform for CITY the following services: 

Project Management 
This task consists of providing engineering and construction management services for the PROJECT. 
COUNTY will provide CITY with a monthly progress report that includes project status, updated 
schedule for completion, estimated amount spent-to-date and estimated final cost. 

Funding Management 
The COUNTY shall act as representative to FHWA for the CITY, filling out forms and submitting 
backup documentation for funding procurement.   

Contracting 
FHWA will be acting as the contracting agency for the entire PROJECT including but not limited to 
preliminary design, permitting, plan preparation, construction management, inspection, and 
construction.  This task includes the preparation of solicitation documents for bids and/or proposals. 

Survey/Design Services 
FHWA will select and manage a consultant to perform topographical and feature survey, design 
alternative analysis and preparation of design drawings and specifications for construction.  COUNTY 
shall provide draft and final design drawings to CITY for review and comment.  Design standards for 
the roadways will conform to the respective design standards of County and City standards except 
where specific design exceptions are approved.   

Permitting 
The County will work with FHWA to ensure that necessary permits are obtained for the PROJECT. 

Right-of-Way Acquisition 
The COUNTY shall obtain all right-of-way, access permits, construction easements and property 

Polk County Contract No. 23-162



 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
Page 2 of 5 

owner agreements necessary to complete for PROJECT on behalf of the CITY.     
 
Construction 
This task includes site preparation, replacement of existing stream crossing, disposal of existing 
structures, road widening, raising road grade (if required), and environmental mitigation (if required). 
 
Project Financing 
The PROJECT is funded through the Federal Lands Access Program.  The estimated total project cost 
is $10,950,937.  The required local match is 10.27%, The total local match is estimated to be 
$1,124,661 million.  FHWA is considering the Dutch Creek Bridge Project Cost ($600,937) as in-kind 
contribution, since that project was originally in the scope of the application and was paid for using Title 
42 funds.  The remaining local cash match is estimated to be $523,724.  The CITY shall contribute 
$10,000 local match and COUNTY shall satisfy the remaining local match requirements.   
 
CITY agrees to perform the following services:  
 
Project Coordination 
The CITY shall coordinate with the COUNTY in a timely manner for the execution of COUNTY 
responsibilities under this agreement.   
 
Services Coordination 
The CITY shall coordinate agreements with and notification to service providers such as postal, school 
and emergency services.   
 
Payment 
The CITY shall make prompt payments to COUNTY within 30 days of receipt of invoice from COUNTY. 
    
 
ARTICLE II - AGREEMENT PERIOD 
 
This Agreement shall become effective on the date of last signature and shall remain in effect for one 
year from the date of PROJECT completion.  Performance may be extended for additional periods by 
written mutual consent between the parties.  Any extension after termination shall be retroactive to the 
date of termination.    
 
ARTICLE III – CONSIDERATION 
 
CITY agrees to pay COUNTY $10,000 for the CITY local match requirement.   
 
ARTICLE IV - NOTICE 
 
Any notice provided for under this Agreement shall be sufficient if in writing and delivered to the 
following addressee: 
 
COUNTY:      
Todd Whitaker, Public Works Director    
Polk County Public Works   
820 SW Ash Street 
Dallas, Oregon 97338   
Phone: (503) 623-9287 
 
CITY: 



 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
Page 3 of 5 

AJ Foscoli, Manager 
City of Falls City 
299 Mill Street 
Falls City, OR  97344 
Phone: (503) 787-3631 
 
ARTICLE V - INDEMNIFICATION 
 
To the extent permitted by Oregon Law (ORS 30.260 through 30.300) and the Oregon Constitution, 
Article XI, Section 7, CITY shall indemnify COUNTY against any liability for damage to life or property 
arising from CITY’S actions under this Agreement provided, however, CITY shall not be required to 
indemnify COUNTY for any such liability arising out of the wrongful or negligent acts of employees or 
agents of COUNTY. 
 
To the extent permitted by Oregon Law (ORS 30.260 through 30.300) and the Oregon Constitution, 
Article XI, Section 7, COUNTY agrees to be responsible, assume liability and indemnify CITY for 
COUNTY’S own wrongful or negligent acts or omissions, or those of its officers, agents, employees or 
representatives. 
 
ARTICLE VI - COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
 
This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon. 
Any suit for enforcement shall occur, if in the state courts, in the Polk County Court having jurisdiction 
thereof, and if in the federal courts, in the United States District Court for the District of Oregon. 
 
ARTICLE VII – ASSIGNMENT 
 
Neither party shall assign or transfer any interest in this Agreement, nor assign any claims for money 
due or to become due during this Agreement, without the prior written approval of the other party. 
 
ARTICLE VIII – DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 
Any disputes under this agreement shall be elevated to the governing body of each jurisdiction by the 
designated official of each agency if the dispute cannot be resolved at the lowest level.  The parties to 
this agreement agree to utilize mediation services prior to any litigation that may arise from unresolved 
conflicts or disagreements.  Mediation costs shall be shared equally between the parties. 
 
ARTICLE IX – TERMINATION 
 
This agreement may be terminated in the following manner:  
 
Insufficient Funding 
Either party has the right to terminate this agreement if the estimated PROJECT cost exceeds 
available funding.  A 30-day Notice shall be given to each party’s designated official to exercise 
this option.  Costs incurred by the COUNTY that are ineligible for funding shall not be reimbursed 
by the CITY.     
 
Mutual Consent 
This agreement may be terminated by the mutual consent of the COUNTY and CITY at any time.  
A 15-day Notice shall be given to each party’s designated official to exercise this option.  Costs 
incurred by the COUNTY that are ineligible for funding shall not be reimbursed by the CITY. 
 



 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
Page 4 of 5 

For Cause 
This agreement may be terminated for cause by either party.     
 
 



 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
Page 5 of 5 

THIS AGREEMENT CONSTITUTES THE ENTIRE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES. THERE 
ARE NO UNDERSTANDINGS, AGREEMENTS, OR REPRESENTATIONS, ORAL OR WRITTEN, 
NOT SPECIFIED HEREIN REGARDING THIS AGREEMENT.  NO AMENDMENT, CONSENT, OR 
WAIVER OF TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BIND EITHER PARTY UNLESS IN WRITING 
AND SIGNED BY ALL PARTIES.  ANY SUCH AMENDMENT, CONSENT, OR WAIVER SHALL BE 
EFFECTIVE ONLY IN THE SPECIFIC INSTANCE AND FOR THE SPECIFIC PURPOSE GIVEN.  
SPONSOR, BY THE SIGNATURE BELOW OF ITS AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE, 
ACKNOWLEDGES HAVING READ AND UNDERSTOOD THE AGREEMENT AND SPONSOR 
AGREES TO BE BOUND BY ITS TERMS AND CONDITIONS.   
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as of 
the date set forth herein by their duly authorized representatives. 
 
CITY OF FALLS CITY, OREGON     POLK COUNTY, OREGON 
     
 
Name:                                                                Name:      
 
Title:                                              Title:                
   
Date:                                                                     Date:                
                                                                 

 

AJ Foscoli

City Manager

7/24/2023



 CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET 

 Staff Contact:  Rosana Warren  Phone Number (Ext):  2428 

 Department:  Health Services: Behavioral Health  Consent Calendar Date:  August 02, 2023 

 Contractor Name:  Betty Sledge Enterprises 

 Address:  2455 SW Crestwood Place 

 City, State, Zip:  Dallas, OR 97338 

 Effective Dates - From:  July 01, 2023  Through:  June 30, 2024 

 Contract Amount:  $96,500.00 

 Background: 

 Elizabeth Sledge, through Betty Sledge Enterprises, has agreed to provide Older Adult Specialist 
 services to identified Polk County individuals. 

 Discussion: 

 Elizabeth Sledge meets the criteria for a service provider and has been cleared to work with us 
 through a criminal history records review. 

 Fiscal Impact: 

 The Behavioral Health Services 2022-2023 budget has sufficient expenditure authority to 
 accommodate this contract. 

 Recommendation: 

 It is recommended that Polk County sign this agreement with Betty Sledge Enterprises. 

 Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following: 
 Name:  Rosana Warren  E-mail:  hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

 Name:  E-mail: 

 Name:  E-mail: 



 CONTRACT & AGREEMENT SUMMARY 

 CONTRACT NUMBER: 

 COUNTY/DEPARTMENT:  POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 CONTACT PERSON:  ROSANA WARREN 

 DATE ISSUED:  07/06/23 

 CONTRACTOR  BETTY SLEDGE ENTERPRISES 
 2455 SW CRESTWOOD PLACE 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 SSN/ID#: 92-1473703 

 CONTACT PERSON:  BETTY SLEDGE 

 SERVICES PROVIDED:  To provide behavioral health services as described in 
 Exhibit B. 

 EFFECTIVE DATES:  FROM JULY 01, 2023 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2024 

 BUDGET LINE #:  240-8540-540-M84

 DOLLAR AMOUNT:  NTE $96,500.00 

 TERMS:  Service Rates per Exhibit B 

 ADDITIONAL 
 COMMENTS/INFORMATION: 

 NOTIFY CONTRACTS TEAM IMMEDIATELY OF ANY CONTRACT TERMINATION 
 HS.CONTRACTS@co.polk.or.us 

Polk County Contract No. 23-163

mailto:HS.CONTRACTS@co.polk.or.us


 AGREEMENT 

 This Agreement is made and entered into by and between 

 POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 a poli�cal subdivision of the State of Oregon, hereina�er referred to as "County" and 

 BETTY SLEDGE ENTERPRISES 
 2455 SW CRESTWOOD PLACE 

 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 SSN/ID#: 92-1473703 

 hereina�er referred to as "Contractor"; and, 

 WHEREAS,  County  is  authorized  to  obtain,  by  contract,  the  services  necessary  to  conduct  its 
 opera�on; and 

 WHEREAS,  Contractor  has  available,  or  can  obtain,  the  necessary  licenses  or  cer�ficates 
 required for the performance of said services; 

 NOW,  THEREFORE,  IT  IS  HEREBY  AGREED  by  and  between  the  par�es  above-men�oned,  for  and 
 in considera�on of the mutual promises hereina�er stated as follows: 

 SECTION I: DECLARATION OF SERVICES RENDERED AS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 A.  The  County  is  desirous  of  securing  the  services  of  the  Contractor  to  perform  services 
 more  specifically  outlined  in  Exhibit  B:  Statement  of  Work,  based  on  Contractor’s 
 specialty and capacity, and Polk County’s needs and capacity. 

 B.  The  Contractor  shall  provide  authorized  services  to  Polk  County  referrals  at  Contractor’s 
 facili�es,  Polk  County  Buildings  on  space  available  basis,  and/or  consumer’s  school 
 facility,  work  loca�on,  or  home  depending  upon  the  needs  of  the  individual.  Depending 
 on  the  nature  of  services  provided,  the  loca�on  of  services  may  be  curtailed  by  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement of Work. 

 C.  Services  shall  be  provided  in  accordance  with  the  document  en�tled  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement  of  Work,  which  is  a�ached  and  by  reference  herein,  made  an  integral  part  of 
 this Agreement. 

 1 



 SECTION II:  CONSIDERATION 

 A.  As  considera�on  for  the  services  provided  by  the  Contractor  during  the  period  beginning 
 July  1,  2023,  and  ending  June  30,  2024,  payment  shall  be  retroac�ve  for  approved 
 services  provided  to  Polk  County  referrals  on  or  a�er  the  period  beginning  date.  Any 
 renewals  and/or  changes  to  this  agreement  must  be  submi�ed  in  wri�ng,  in  the  form  of 
 an amendment to this Contract and signed by both Par�es. 

 B.  Agreement  is  effec�ve  upon  the  signature  of  all  par�es.  It  is  understood  by  both  par�es 
 that  no  commitments  have  been  or  are  made  by  either  party  beyond  the  termina�on  of 
 the Agreement. 

 C.  The  County  will  pay  to  the  Contractor,  by  check(s)  or  ACH  direct  payment  upon  receipt  of 
 an  authorized  billing  document  at  the  rates  outlined  in  Exhibit  B  and  as  approved  by  Polk 
 County.  Billings  shall  be  submi�ed  to  HS  Fiscal  either  electronically  to 
 hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us  or  by  mail  to  Polk  County  Health  Services  Business  Services 
 Department,  182  SW  Academy  Street  Suite  204,  Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  County  shall 
 endeavor  remit  payment  within  2-3  weeks  of  receipt  of  appropriate  billing,  suppor�ng 
 documenta�on and signed invoice. 

 D.  It  is  agreed  that  Contractor  shall  accept  payment  from  Polk  County  as  full  and  total 
 payment  for  services  and  that  Contractor  shall  not  bill  any  Polk  County  clients  (or  their 
 insurance) served under this agreement for services delivered hereunder. 

 E.  Contractor  is  engaged  hereby  as  an  independent  contrac tor,  and  the  services  to  be 
 rendered  are  those  of  an  independent  contractor,  subject  to  ORS  Chapter  656,  and  will 
 be so deemed for purposes of the following: 

 i.  Contractor  will  be  solely  responsible  for  payment  of  any  Federal  or  State  taxes 
 required as a result of this Agreement. 

 ii.  This  Agreement  is  not  intended  to  en�tle  Contractor  to  any  benefits  generally 
 granted  to  County  employees.  Without  limita�on,  but  by  way  of  illustra�on,  the 
 benefits  which  are  not  intended  to  be  extended  by  this  Agreement  to  the  Contractor 
 are  vaca�on,  holiday  and  sick  leave,  other  leaves  with  pay,  tenure,  medical  and 
 dental  coverage,  life  and  disability  insurance,  over�me,  Social  Security,  workers' 
 compensa�on, unemployment compensa�on or re�rement benefits . 

 iii.  The  Contractor  is  an  independent  contractor  for  purposes  of  the  Oregon  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  Law  (ORS  Chapter  656)  and  is  solely  liable  for  any  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  coverage  under  this  Agreement.  If  the  Contractor  has  the  assistance 

 2 

mailto:hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us


 of  other  persons  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  qualify 
 and  remain  qualified  for  the  term  of  this  Agreement  as  a  direct  responsibility 
 employer under ORS 656.407 or as a contrib u�ng employer under ORS 656.411. 

 F.  Exhibit  A  –  Business  Associate  Agreement  a�ached  hereto  is  by  this  reference 
 incorporated herein and made an integral part of this agreement. 

 SECTION III:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 A.  Extent  of  Agreement:  This  Agreement  contains  all  the  terms  and  condi�ons  agreed  upon 
 by  the  par�es.  No  other  understandings,  oral  or  otherwise,  regarding  the  subject  ma�er 
 of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the par�es hereto. 

 B.  Cap�ons:  The  cap�ons  or  headings  in  this  Agreement  are  for  convenience  only  and  in  no 
 way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provision of this Agreement. 

 C.  Payment  as  Sole  Monetary  Obliga�on  of  the  County:  The  Contractor  is  engaged  as  an 
 independent  contractor.  Payment  as  provided  herein  shall  be  the  sole  monetary 
 obliga �on  of  the  County.  Unless  otherwise  specified,  the  responsi bility  for  payment  of 
 all  opera�ng  costs,  Federal,  State,  County  or  city  taxes/assessments  and  any  other 
 charges  imposed  by  law  upon  employers  shall  be  the  sole  responsibility  of  the 
 Contractor. 

 D.  Licensing  and  Program  Standards:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply  with  all  applicable 
 State,  County,  and  municipal  standards  for  licensing,  and  any  other  standards  or  criteria 
 described in this Agreement and its a�achments. 

 E.  Contractor-client  Rela�onship:  The  Contractor  will  establish  a  system  through  which  a 
 client  and/or  the  client’s  parents  or  guardian  may  represent  grievances  about  the 
 opera�on  of  the  Contractor’s  service  program.  At  the  �me  arrangements  are  made  for 
 the  Contractor’s  service,  the  Contractor  will  advise  the  child  and  parents  or  guardian  of 
 the provision.  The Contractor shall no�fy the County of all unresolved grievances. 

 F.  Safeguarding of Client Informa�on: 

 i.  The  use  or  disclosure  by  any  party  of  any  informa�on  concern ing  a  recipient  of 
 services  purchased  under  this  Agreement,  for  any  purpose  not  directly  connected 
 with  the  administra �on  of  the  County's  or  the  Contractor's  responsibili�es  with 
 respect  to  such  purchased  services,  is  prohibited,  except  on  wri�en  consent  of  the 
 County,  or  if  the  County  is  not  the  recipient,  on  wri�en  consent  of  the  recipient  or 
 a�orney, or otherwise compliant with Contractor’s obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 3 



 ii.  For  the  purposes  of  safeguarding  protected  client  informa�on,  Contractor  agrees  to 
 abide  by  all  County  rules  and  regula�ons  regarding  Communica�on  technology  as 
 documented  in  the  County’s  Communica�ons  Technology  Policy.  Contractors 
 providing  services  from  a  County  facility  will  be  provided  appropriate  County 
 equipment  to  perform  its  du�es  under  this  agreement.  To  the  extent  that  Contractor 
 elects  to  use  their  own  technology  (computer,  cellular  phone,  etc…)  Contractor 
 warrants  that  such  equipment  shall  be  compliant  with  County  rules  and  regula�ons, 
 and its obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 G.  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964  and  Rehabilita�on  Act  of  1973:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply 
 with  the  requirements  of  the  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964,  and  Sec�on  504  of  the 
 Rehabilita �on  Act  of  1973,  and  their  implemen�ng  Federal  regula�ons,  including 
 Execu�ve Order 11246 as amended. 

 H.  Fiscal Responsibility, Records, Controls, Reports, and Monitoring Procedures: 

 i.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to 
 assure  full  compliance  with  Federal  regula�ons  and  the  County’s  guidelines  on 
 allowable use of funds paid by the County under this Agreement. 

 ii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  maintain  fiscal  records  consistent  with  generally  accepted 
 accoun�ng  prac�ces  and  controls,  which  will  properly  reflect  all  direct  and  indirect 
 costs  and  funds  expended  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement.  The  Contractor 
 shall  make  these  records  available  at  reasonable  �mes  upon  request  to  State  and 
 Federal personnel, and other persons authorized by the County. 

 iii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  collect  financial  sta�s�cs  on  a  regular  basis  and  to  make 
 financial reports at �mes in the form prescribed by the County. 

 I.  Program  Records,  Controls,  Reports,  and  Monitoring  Procedures:  The  Contractor  agrees 
 to  maintain  program  records  including  sta�s�cal  records,  and  to  provide  program 
 records  to  the  County  at  �mes  and  in  the  form  prescribed  by  the  County.  The  Contractor 
 agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to  assure  full  compliance 
 with  the  program  and  facili�es  review  (including  mee�ngs  with  consumers,  reviews  of 
 service  records,  review  of  policy  and  procedures,  review  of  staffing  ra�os  and  job 
 descrip�ons,  and  mee�ngs  with  any  staff  directly  of  indirectly  involved  in  the  provision 
 of  services)  may  be  conducted  at  any  reasonable  �me  by  State  and  Federal  personnel 
 and other persons authorized by the County. 

 J.  Reten�on  of  Records:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  retain  all  books,  records,  and  other 
 documents  relevant  to  this  Agreement  for  three  (3)  years  a�er  final  payment  is  made 

 4 



 under  the  Agreement  or  all  pending  ma�ers  are  closed,  whichever  is  later.  If  li�ga�on  or 
 other  ac�on  involving  the  Agreement  is  started  before  the  end  of  the  three  (3)  year 
 period,  the  records  shall  be  retained  un�l  all  issues  arising  out  of  the  ac�on  are  resolved 
 or un�l the end of the three (3) year period, whichever is later. 

 K.  Insurance: 

 i.  Contractor  agrees  that  it  is  an  independent  contractor  and  not  an  agent  of  the 
 County.  The  Contractor  and  the  County  shall  not  be  responsible  for  any  legal  liability, 
 loss,  malprac�ce,  damages,  costs  and  expenses  arising  in  favor  of  any  person  on 
 account  of  personal  injuries,  death  or  property  loss  or  damage  occurring,  growing 
 out  of,  incident  to  or  resul�ng  directly  or  indirectly  from  the  acts  or  omissions  of  the 
 other party under this Agreement. 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  obtain,  and  at  all  �mes  keep  in  effect,  comprehensive  liability 
 insurance  and  property  damage  insurance  covering  ac�vi�es,  opera�ons,  and 
 omissions  of  the  Contractor,  all  subcontractors,  and  all  named  addi�onal  insureds. 
 Contractor  may  sa�sfy  this  requirement  for  general  liability  insurance  in  any  manner 
 allowed  by  ORS  30.282.  Such  liability  insurance,  whatever  the  form,  shall  be  in  an 
 amount  not  less  than  one  million  dollars  ($1,000,000)  with  provision  for  increased 
 coverage  as  such  limits  are  increased  by  legisla�ve  ac�on.  In  the  event  of  unilateral 
 cancella�on  or  restric�on  by  the  insurance  company  of  the  Contractor's  insurance 
 policy  referred  to  in  this  paragraph,  the  Contractor  shall  immediately  no�fy  the 
 County verbally and in wri�ng. 

 iii.  As  evidence  of  the  insurance  coverage  required  by  this  Agreement,  and  prior  to  the 
 execu�on  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  furnish  a  Cer�ficate  of  Insurance  to 
 Polk  County,  to  Polk  County  Health  Services,  182  SW  Academy  Street,  Suite  204, 
 Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  Cer�ficate  form,  to  be  completed  by  the  Contractor's 
 insurer,  naming  Polk  County  as  addi�onal  insured,  will  be  maintained  in  the  County's 
 file of this Agreement. 

 iv.  There  shall  not  be  any  cancella�on,  material  changes  or  failure  to  renew  such 
 insurance policy (policies) without thirty (30) days’ prior no�ce to the County. 

 L.  Subcontrac�ng:  Unless  subcontrac�ng  is  authorized  elsewhere  in  the  Agree ment,  the 
 Contractor  shall  not  enter  into  any  subcontracts  for  any  of  the  work  contemplated  under 
 this  Agreement  without  obtaining  prior  wri�en  approval  from  the  County,  which 
 approval  shall  be  a�ached  to  the  original  Agreement.  Approval  by  the  County  of  a 
 subcontract  shall  not  result  in  any  obliga�ons  of  the  County  in  addi�on  to  the  agreed 
 rates  of  payment  and  total  considera�on.  Any  subcontracts  which  the  County  may 

 5 



 authorize  shall  contain  all  requirements  of  this  Agreement,  and  the  Contractor  shall  be 
 responsible  for  the  performance  of  the  subcontractor.  Contractor  may  subcon tract 
 medical  inves�gator's  du�es  so  long  as  the  sub contractor  possesses  medical 
 qualifica�ons equivalent to those of the Contractor. 

 M.  Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on:  Any  altera�ons,  varia�ons,  modifica�ons  to  or  waivers 
 of  provisions  of  this  Agreement  shall  be  valid  only  when  they  have  been  reduced  to 
 wri�ng,  duly  signed,  and  approved  by  the  Contractor  and  the  County  and  a�ached  to 
 the original of this Agreement. 

 N.  Excuses  for  Nonperformance:  Neither  party  to  this  Agreement  shall  be  held  responsible 
 for  delay  or  failure  in  performance  of  the  ac�vi�es  required  herein  when  such  delay  or 
 failure  is  due  to  causes  beyond  the  control  and  without  the  fault  or  negligence  of  the 
 party.  Such  causes  may  include,  but  are  not  restricted  to,  fire,  flood,  epidemic,  strikes, 
 acts  of  God  or  the  public  enemy,  unusually  severe  weather,  legal  acts  of  public 
 authori�es,  or  delays  or  defaults  caused  by  public  carriers,  which  cannot  reasonably  be 
 forecast  or  provided  against.  Either  party  may  terminate  the  Agreement  a�er 
 reasonably  determining  that  such  delay  or  failure  will  prevent  con�nued  performance  of 
 the  Agreement,  and  a�er  giving  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  other  party  of  the  cause,  its  effect 
 on  Agreement  performance  and  effec �ve  date  of  termina�on.  If  the  Agreement  is  so 
 terminated,  the  obliga�on  of  the  County  shall  be  limited  to  payment  for  services 
 provided in accordance with the Agreement prior to the date of termina�on. 

 O.  Remedies:  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  or  perform  any  of  the  other 
 requirements  under  the  Contract,  and  such  failure  is  not  excused  under  the  paragraph 
 �tled  "Excuses  for  Nonperformance",  the  County,  a�er  giving  the  Contractor  wri�en 
 no�ce  of  such  failure,  may  withhold  part  or  all  of  the  Contractor's  payment  for  the 
 services  un�l  such  failure  is  corrected.  If  the  Contractor  does  not  correct  such  failure 
 within  a  reasonable  �me  allowed  by  the  County,  the  County  may  terminate  the 
 Agreement  in  accordance  with  the  clause  �tled  "Termina�on."  However,  this  paragraph, 
 and  any  ac�ons  taken  or  not  taken  under  it,  shall  not  affect  the  County's  rights  under  the 
 "Termina�on" clause. 

 P.  Termina�on:  This  Agreement  may  be  terminated  by  mutual  consent  of  both  par�es  or 
 unilaterally  by  both  par�es  at  any  �me  upon  thirty  (30)  days’  no�ce  to  the  other  party 
 in  wri�ng  and  delivered  personally  or  by  Cer�fied  Mail.  The  County  may  also  unilaterally 
 terminate  this  Agreement  effec�ve  upon  delivery  of  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  Contrac tor,  or 
 at  such  later  date  as  may  be  established  by  the  County,  under  any  of  the  following 
 condi�ons: 

 6 



 i.  If  funds,  specifically  authorized  by  Legisla�ve  acts,  do  not  become  available  in 
 amounts  sufficient  to  allow  for  purchase  of  the  stated  quan�ty  of  services.  When 
 possible  and  when  agreed  upon  by  the  par�es,  the  Agreement  may  be  modified  in 
 accordance  with  the  paragraph  en�tled  “Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on”  to 
 accommodate a reduc�on in funds. 

 ii.  If  Federal  or  State  laws,  regula�ons  or  guidelines  are  modified  or  changed  in  such  a 
 way  that  the  services  are  no  longer  allowable  or  appropriate  for  purchase  under  this 
 Agreement  or  no  longer  qualify  for  the  funding  proposed  for  payments  authorized  by 
 this Agreement. 

 iii.  If  any  license  or  cer�ficate  required  by  law  or  regula�on  to  be  held  by  the  Contractor 
 to  provide  the  services  required  by  this  Agreement  is  for  any  reason  denied,  revoked, 
 not  renewed,  or  changed  in  such  a  way  that  the  Contractor  no  longer  meets 
 requirements for such license or cer�ficate. 

 iv.  Termina�on  under  this  clause  shall  be  without  prejudice  to  any  obliga�ons  or 
 liabili�es  of  either  party  already  reasonably  incurred  prior  to  such  termina�on, 
 except  that  the  Contractor  shall  be  solely  responsible  for  its  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es 
 a�er  the  termina�on  date,  which  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es  result  from  the 
 Contractor's  failure  to  provide  for  termina�on  of,  or  exercises  the  right  to  terminate, 
 its  commitments.  No  right  of  ac�on  or  damages  shall  accrue  to  the  benefit  of  the 
 Contractor if the Agreement is terminated under this clause. 

 v.  The  County,  by  wri�en  no�ce  of  default  (including  breach  of  contract)  to  the 
 Contractor, may terminate this Agreement: 

 a.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  called  for  by  this  Agreement  within 
 the �me speci fied herein or any extension thereof granted by the County; or 

 b.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  perform  any  of  the  other  requirements  of  this 
 Agreement; or 

 c.  If  the  Contractor  so  fails  to  perform  the  work  required  in  the  Agreement  that 
 performance  of  this  Agreement  in  accordance  with  its  terms  is  endan gered,  and 
 a�er  receipt  of  wri�en  no�ce  from  the  County  specifying  such  failure,  the 
 Contractor  fails  to  correct  such  failure  within  ten  (10)  days  or  such  longer  period 
 as the County may authorize. 

 vi.  If  the  Agreement  is  terminated  under  this  clause,  the  County's  obliga�ons  shall  be 
 limited  to  payment  for  services  provided  in  accordance  with  the  Agreement  prior  to 

 7 



 the  date  of  termina�on,  less  any  damages  suffered  by  the  County.  The  rights  and 
 remedies  of  the  County  in  this  clause  related  to  defaults  (including  breach  of 
 contract)  by  the  Contractor  shall  not  be  exclusive  and  are  in  addi�on  to  any  other 
 rights and remedies provided to the County by law or under this Agreement. 

 Q.  Hold  Harmless:  Except  for  claims  arising  in  whole  from  the  negligence  of  County,  its 
 employees  or  its  agents,  Contractor  agrees  to  indemnify  and  hold  County  harmless  from 
 and  against  all  ac�ons,  suits,  claims  and  demands  arising  out  of  Contractor’s 
 performance  under  this  Contract  and  agrees  to  defend  County  in  such  ac�ons,  suits, 
 claims and demands. 

 R.  Waiver  of  Default:  Waiver  of  any  default  shall  not  be  deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any 
 subsequent  default.  Waiver  of  breach  of  any  provision  of  the  Agreement  shall  not  be 
 deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any  other  or  subsequent  breach  and  shall  not  be  construed  to 
 be  a  modifica�on  of  the  terms  of  the  Agreement  unless  stated  to  be  such  in  wri�ng, 
 signed  by  an  authorized  representa�ve  of  the  County,  and  a�ached  to  the  original 
 Agreement in accordance with the paragraph en�tled "Re-nego�a�on or Modifica�on". 

 S.  Severability:  The  par�es  agree  that  if  any  term  or  provision  of  this  Agreement  is  declared 
 by  a  court  of  competent  jurisdic�on  to  be  illegal  or  in  conflict  with  any  law,  the  validity  of 
 the  remaining  terms  and  provisions  shall  not  be  affected,  and  the  rights  and  obliga�ons 
 of  the  par�es  shall  be  construed  and  enforced  as  if  the  Agreement  did  not  contain  the 
 par�cular term or provision held to be invalid. 

 T.  Fees  Prohibited:  The  Contractor  will  not  impose  or  demand  any  fees  from  any  person  or 
 agency  for  services  provided  and  paid  for  under  this  Agreement,  unless  the  fees  have 
 been approved in advance by the County in wri�ng. 

 U.  Non-Discrimina�on:  The  Contractor  acknowledges  that  they  are  an  equal  opportunity 
 employer  and  no  person  shall  be  denied  services  or  discrimi nated  against  on  the  basis  of 
 race,  color,  religion,  sex,  sexual  orienta�on,  na�onal  origin,  marital  status  or  age,  and 
 there  shall  be  no  discrimina�on  in  the  selec�on,  compensa�on  or  the  employ ment 
 prac�ces with respect to personnel coming under the auspices of the Contractor. 

 V.  Assignment  of  Agreement:  The  Contractor  shall  not  assign  or  transfer  its  interest  in  this 
 Agreement  without  prior  wri�en  approval  of  the  County,  which  shall  be  a�ached  to  the 
 original  Agreement.  Any  such  assignment,  if  approved,  is  subject  to  such  condi�ons  and 
 provisions,  as  the  County  may  deem  necessary.  No  approval  by  the  County  of  any 
 assignment  or  transfer  of  interest  shall  be  deemed  to  create  any  obliga�on  of  the  county 
 in addi�on to the agreed rates of payment and total Agreement considera�on. 

 8 



 W.  Funds  Authorized  and  Available:  The  County  cer�fies  that  at  the  �me  of  signing  this 
 Agree ment,  sufficient  funds  are  authorized  and  available,  or  are  an�cipated  to  be 
 available,  for  expenditure  to  finance  costs  of  this  Agreement  within  the  County's  current 
 appropri a�on or limita�on. 

 X.  Recovery  of  Overpayments:  If  billings  under  this  Agreement,  or  under  any  Agreement 
 between  the  Contractor  and  the  County,  result  in  payments  to  the  Contractor  for  which 
 the  Contractor  is  not  en�tled  under  the  terms  of  such  Agreement,  the  County,  a�er 
 giving  wri�en  no�fica�on  to  the  Contractor,  may  withhold  from  payments  due  to  the 
 Contractor  under  this  Agreement  such  amounts,  over  such  periods  of  �me,  as  are 
 necessary to recover the amount of the overpayment. 

 Y.  Criminal  History  Records  Checks:  Contractor  agrees  to  authorize  a  review  of  state  and 
 federal  records  by  Polk  County  as  a  qualified  en�ty,  to  determine  the  nature  of  any 
 criminal  ac�vity  the  Contractor  may  have  been  involved  in  accordance  with  OAR 
 943-007-001  for  purposes  described  in  OAR  407-007-0400.  No  work  will  be  assigned  to 
 Contractor  un�l  a  Criminal  History  Check  is  completed  and  verified  by  the  qualified 
 en�ty.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  Polk  County  within  five  days  of  being  arrested,  charged,  or 
 convicted of any crime. 

 SECTION IV:  CLAUSES REQUIRED BY OREGON LAW FOR PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS 

 A.  Payment  of  Subcontractors,  Industrial  Accident  Fund  Contribu�ons,  Liens  and 
 Withholding Taxes: 

 i.  Contractor  shall  make  payment  promptly,  as  due,  to  all  persons  supplying  to  such 
 contractor  labor  or  material  for  the  prosecu�on  of  the  work  provided  for  in  this 
 contract. 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  pay  all  contribu�ons  or  amounts  due  the  Industrial  Accident  Fund 
 from such contractor or subcontractor incurred in the performance of the contract. 

 iii.  Contractor  shall  not  permit  any  lien  or  claim  to  be  filed  or  prosecuted  against  the 
 state,  county,  school  district,  municipality,  Municipal  Corpora�on  or  subdivisions 
 thereof, on account of any labor or material furnished. 

 iv.  Contractor  shall  pay  to  the  Department  of  Revenue  all  sums  withheld  from 
 employees pursuant to ORS 316.167. 

 B.  Payment  of  Claims  by  County  :  If  Contractor  fails,  neglects  or  refuses  to  make  prompt 
 payment  of  any  claim  for  labor  or  services  furnished  to  the  contractor  or  a  subcontractor 
 by  any  person  in  connec�on  with  the  public  contract  as  such  claim  becomes  due,  the 

 9 



 proper  officer  or  officers  represen�ng  Polk  County  may  pay  such  claim  to  the  person 
 furnishing  the  labor  or  services  and  charge  the  amount  of  payment  against  funds  due  or 
 to  become  due  the  Contractor  by  reason  of  this  contract.  Payment  of  a  claim  in  this 
 manner  shall  not  relieve  the  contractor  or  contractor’s  surety  from  obliga�on  with 
 respect to any unpaid claims. 

 C.  Hours  of  Labor:  All  laborers  providing  contract  services  shall  be  paid  at  least  �me  and  a 
 half  for  all  over�me  worked  in  excess  of  40  hours  in  any  one  week,  except  for  individuals 
 under  these  contracts  who  are  excluded  under  ORS  653.010  to  653.261  or  under  29  USC 
 sec�on 201 to 209 from receiving over�me. 

 D.  Payment  for  Medical  Care:  Contractor  shall  promptly,  as  due,  make  payment  to  any 
 person,  co-partnership,  associa�on  or  corpora�on,  furnishing  medical,  surgical  and 
 hospital  care  or  other  needed  care  and  a�en�on,  incident  to  sickness  or  injury,  to  the 
 employees  for  such  Contractor,  of  all  sums  which  the  Contractor  agrees  to  pay  for  such 
 services  and  all  moneys  and  sums  which  the  contractor  collected  or  deducted  from  the 
 wages  of  employees  pursuant  to  any  law,  contract  or  agreement  for  the  purpose  of 
 providing or paying such service. 

 E.  Providing  Workers’  Compensa�on  Insurance:  All  employers  working  under  this  contract 
 are subject employers who will comply with ORS 656.017. 

 F.  Health  Care  Benefits  for  Employees:  The  Contractor  shall  provide  health  care  benefits  to 
 all  employees  who  are  performing  services  previously  performed  by  public  employees  if 
 the  condi�ons  specified  in  ORS  653.767  require  such  payment.  Benefits  must  equal  or 
 exceed  those  benefits  specified  in  ORS  279.315(3).  This  clause  does  not  apply  to 
 contracts for temporary, non-ongoing or nonrecurring contracts. 

 G.  Americans  with  Disabili�es  Act  Compliance:  Contractor  agrees  that  Contractor  will 
 comply  and  does  comply  with  all  relevant  provisions  of  the  Americans  with  Disabili�es 
 Act, to the extent required by the Act. 

 10 





 EXHIBIT A: 
 BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

 Between 
 POLK COUNTY  and BETTY SLEDGE ENTERPRISES 

 1.  DEFINITIONS: 

 Except  as  otherwise  defined  in  this  Business  Associate  Agreement  (BA  Agreement),  any 
 and  all  italicized  terms  herein  shall  have  the  same  defini�on  as  those  in  the  HIPAA 
 Privacy  Rule.  1  Henceforth,  Polk  County,  a  poli�cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon, 
 shall  be  referred  as  “COUNTY”  and  BETTY  SLEDGE  ENTERPRISES  shall  be  referred  to  as 
 “CONTRACTOR”. 

 2.  OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF CONTRACTOR: 

 A.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  not  use  or  disclose  Protected  Health  Informa�on  other  than 
 as permi�ed or required by this BA Agreement or as permi�ed or required by law. 

 B.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  use  appropriate  safeguards  to  prevent  use  or  disclosure  of 
 Protected Health Informa�on other than as provided for by this BA Agreement. 

 C.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  mi�gate,  to  the  extent  prac�cable,  any  harmful  effect  that  is 
 known  to  CONTRACTOR  of  a  use  or  disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  by 
 CONTRACTOR in viola�on of the requirements of this BA Agreement. 

 D.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  report  to  the  COUNTY  any  use  or  disclosure  of  the  Protected 
 Health  Informa�on  not  provided  for  by  this  BA  Agreement  of  which  it  becomes 
 aware. 

 E.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  ensure  that  any  agent,  including  a  subcontractor,  to  whom  it 
 provides  Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by, 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  agrees  to  the  same  restric�ons  and 
 condi�ons  that  apply  through  this  BA  Agreement  to  CONTRACTOR  with  respect  to 
 such informa�on. 

 1  The use and disclosure of protected health informa�on in performance of Business Associate func�ons is 
 governed by the Standards for Privacy of Individually Iden�fiable Health Informa�on (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164), 
 referred to as the Privacy Rule, which were issued by the United States Department of Health and Human Services 
 pursuant to Public Law 104-191, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA). The use 
 and disclosure of protected health informa�on is also governed by laws of the State of Oregon and by other federal 
 laws. 

 12 



 F.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  access, 
 at  the  request  of  the  COUNTY,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for  reasonable 
 compliance,  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  to  the 
 COUNTY  or,  as  directed  by  the  COUNTY,  to  an  Individual  in  order  to  meet  the 
 requirements under 45 CFR § 164.524. 

 G.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  any 
 amendment(s)  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  that  the 
 COUNTY  directs  or  agrees  to  pursuant  to  45  CFR  §  164.526  at  the  request  of 
 CONTRACTOR,  or  an  Individual,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for 
 reasonable compliance. 

 H.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  internal  prac�ces,  books,  and  records,  including 
 policies  and  procedures  and  Protected  Health  Informa�on,  rela�ng  to  the  use  and 
 disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  available  to  the  COUNTY  or  to  the  Secretary 
 of  the  Department  of  Health  and  Human  Services  ,  in  a  �me  and  manner  agreed 
 between  the  COUNTY  and  CONTRACTOR  or  designated  by  the  Secretary,  for 
 purposes  of  the  Secretary  determining  the  COUNTY’S  compliance  with  the  Privacy 
 Rule. 

 I.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  document  such  disclosures  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on 
 and  informa�on  related  to  such  disclosures  as  would  be  required  for  the  COUNTY  to 
 respond  to  a  request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected 
 Health Informa�on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 J.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  to  the  COUNTY  or  an  Individual,  in  the  �me  and 
 manner  necessary  for  reasonable  compliance,  informa�on  collected  in  accordance 
 with  sec�on  2.A  of  this  BA  Agreement,  to  permit  the  COUNTY  to  respond  to  a 
 request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 3.  PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY CONTRACTOR: Except as otherwise limited in 
 this BA Agreement, CONTRACTOR may use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on to 
 perform certain health plan func�ons for or on behalf of the COUNTY as specified in the 
 Polk County Agreement and in this BA Agreement provided that such use or disclosure 
 would not violate the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY or the minimum necessary 
 policies and procedures of the COUNTY. 

 13 



 4.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE COUNTY: 

 A.  The  COUNTY  shall  no�fy  CONTRACTOR  of  any  limita�on(s)  in  the  No�ce  of  Privacy 
 Prac�ces  of  the  COUNTY  in  accordance  with  45  CFR  §  164.520,  to  the  extent  that 
 such  limita�on  may  affect  CONTRACTOR’S  use  or  disclosure  of  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on. 

 B.  The  COUNTY  shall  no�fy  CONTRACTOR  of  any  changes  in,  or  revoca�on  of, 
 permission  by  Individual  to  use  or  disclose  Protected  Health  Informa�on,  to  the 
 extent  that  such  changes  may  affect  CONTRACTOR’S  use  or  disclosure  of  Protected 
 Health Informa�on. 

 C.  The  COUNTY  shall  no�fy  CONTRACTOR  of  any  restric�on  to  the  use  or  disclosure  of 
 Protected  Health  Informa�on  that  the  COUNTY  has  agreed  to  in  accordance  with  45 
 CFR  §  164.522,  to  the  extent  that  such  restric�on  may  affect  CONTRACTOR’S  use  or 
 disclosure of Protected Health Informa�on. 

 5.  PERMISSIBLE  REQUESTS  BY  THE  COUNTY:  The  COUNTY  shall  not  request  CONTRACTOR  to 
 use  or  disclose  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  any  manner  that  would  not  be 
 permissible  under  the  Privacy  Rule  if  done  by  the  COUNTY  except  if  such  use  or 
 disclosure is permi�ed under the Agreement between the COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 

 6.  TERM AND TERMINATION: 

 A.  Term  .  This  BA  Agreement  shall  be  effec�ve  as  of  July  01,  2023,  and  shall  terminate 
 when  all  of  the  Protected  Health  Informa�on  provided  by  the  COUNTY  to 
 CONTRACTOR,  or  created  or  received  by  CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY,  is 
 destroyed  or  returned  to  the  COUNTY,  or,  if  it  is  infeasible  to  return  or  destroy 
 Protected  Health  Informa�on,  protec�ons  are  extended  to  such  informa�on,  in 
 accordance with the termina�on provisions in this Sec�on. 

 B.  Termina�on  for  Cause  .  Upon  the  COUNTY’S  knowledge  of  a  material  breach  by 
 CONTRACTOR, the COUNTY shall either: 

 i.  Provide  an  opportunity  for  CONTRACTOR  to  cure  the  breach  without  the 
 interven�on  of  the  COUNTY  within  the  �meline  specified  in  Sec�on  III  (P)  of  the 
 Polk County Agreement; or 

 ii.  Provide  an  opportunity  for  CONTRACTOR  to  terminate  this  BA  Agreement  and 
 the  Polk  County  Agreement  within  the  �meline  specified  in  Sec�on  III  of  the  Polk 
 County  Agreement.  At  the  direc�on  of  its  Board  of  Directors,  the  COUNTY  may 

 14 



 terminate  this  BA  Agreement  and  the  Polk  County  Agreement  as  permi�ed  in 
 Sec�on  III  of  the  Polk  County  Agreement  if  CONTRACTOR  has  not  cured  the 
 breach  upon  conclusion  of  the  technical  assistance  and  correc�ve  ac�on 
 described in paragraph (i.) of this sec�on; or 

 iii.  If  neither  termina�on  nor  cure  is  feasible,  the  COUNTY  shall  report  the  viola�on 
 to the Secretary. 

 C.  Effect of Termina�on  . 

 i.  Except  as  provided  in  paragraph  (ii.)  of  this  sec�on,  upon  termina�on  of  this  BA 
 Agreement,  for  any  reason,  CONTRACTOR  shall  return  or  destroy  all  Protected 
 Health  Informa�on  received  from  the  COUNTY,  or  created  or  received  by 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY.  This  provision  shall  apply  to  Protected 
 Health  Informa�on  that  is  in  the  possession  of  subcontractors  or  agents  of 
 CONTRACTOR.  CONTRACTOR  shall  retain  no  copies  of  the  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on. 

 ii.  In  the  event  that  CONTRACTOR  determines  that  returning  or  destroying  the 
 Protected  Health  Informa�on  is  infeasible,  CONTRACTOR  shall  provide  to  the 
 COUNTY  wri�en  no�fica�on  of  the  condi�ons  that  make  return  or  destruc�on 
 infeasible.  Upon  wri�en  acknowledgement  by  the  COUNTY  that  the  return  or 
 destruc�on  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  is  infeasible,  CONTRACTOR  shall 
 extend  the  protec�ons  of  this  BA  Agreement  to  such  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on  and  limit  further  uses  and  disclosures  of  such  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on  to  those  purposed  that  make  the  return  or  destruc�on  infeasible,  for 
 so long as CONTRACTOR maintains such Protected Health Informa�on. 

 7.  MISCELLANEOUS: 

 A.  Regulatory  References  .  References  in  this  BA  Agreement  to  the  Privacy  Rule  or  any 
 sec�on  of  the  Privacy  Rule  means  the  Privacy  Rule  or  sec�on  as  in  effect  or  as 
 amended. 

 B.  Amendment  .  The  COUNTY  and  CONTRACTOR  agree  to  take  such  ac�on  as  is 
 necessary  to  amend  this  BA  Agreement  from  �me  to  �me  as  is  necessary  for  the 
 COUNTY to comply with the requirement of the Privacy Rule and HIPAA. 

 C.  Survival  .  The  respec�ve  rights  and  obliga�ons  of  CONTRACTOR  under  Sec�on  6.C  of 
 this BA Agreement shall survive the termina�on of this BA Agreement. 

 15 



 D.  Interpreta�on  .  Any  ambiguity  in  this  BA  Agreement  shall  be  resolved  to  permit  the 
 COUNTY  to  comply  with  the  Privacy  Rule.  In  the  event  of  any  inconsistency  between 
 the  provisions  of  this  BA  Agreement  and  the  mandatory  provisions  of  the  Privacy 
 Rule,  the  Privacy  Rule  shall  control.  Where  laws  in  the  State  of  Oregon  or  other 
 federal  law  is  more  stringent  than  the  Privacy  Rule,  the  more  stringent  Oregon  or 
 federal law shall control. 

 8.  SECURITY RULE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT LANGUAGE: 

 A.  Background  Requirement  :  The  COUNTY,  in  accordance  with  §  164.306  and  §  164.308 
 (b),  may  permit  the  CONTRACTOR  to  create,  receive,  maintain,  or  transmit  Electronic 
 Protected  Health  Informa�on  on  the  COUNTY’S  behalf  only  if  the  COUNTY  obtains 
 sa�sfactory  assurances,  in  accordance  with  §  164.314(a)  that  the  CONTRACTOR  will 
 appropriately  safeguard  the  informa�on.  The  COUNTY  must  document  the 
 sa�sfactory  assurances  through  a  wri�en  contract  or  other  arrangement  with  the 
 CONTRACTOR. 

 B.  Part  I.  Security  Assurances  :  The  CONTRACTOR  will  Implement  administra�ve, 
 physical,  and  technical  safeguards  that  reasonably  and  appropriately  protect  the 
 confiden�ality,  integrity,  and  availability  of  the  electronic  protected  health 
 informa�on  that  it  creates,  receives,  maintains,  or  transmits  on  behalf  of  the 
 COUNTY  as  required  by  the  Health  Insurance  Portability  and  Accountability  Act  of 
 1996  and  the  requirements  of  Health  Insurance  Reform,  the  Security  Standards 
 (45CFR Parts 160, 162 & 164); 

 i.  Ensure  that  any  agent,  including  a  SUBCONTRACTOR,  to  whom  it  provides  such 
 informa�on,  agrees  to  implement  reasonable  and  appropriate  safeguards  to 
 protect it. 

 ii.  Report to the COUNTY any security incident of which it becomes aware. 

 iii.  Authorize  termina�on  of  the  contract  by  the  COUNTY,  if  the  COUNTY  determines 
 that the business associate has violated a material term of the contract. 

 C.  Part  II.  Other  arrangements:  When  the  COUNTY  and  the  CONTRACTOR  are  both 
 governmental en��es, the COUNTY is in compliance with the requirements if: 

 i.  It  enters  into  a  memorandum  of  understanding  with  the  CONTRACTOR  that 
 contains terms that accomplish the objec�ves of Part I.; or 

 16 



 ii.  Other  law  (including  regula�ons  adopted  by  the  COUNTY  or  the  CONTRACTOR) 
 contains  requirements  applicable  to  the  CONTRACTOR  that  accomplish  the 
 objec�ves of Part I. 

 D.  If  the  CONTRACTOR  is  required  by  law  to  perform  a  func�on  or  ac�vity  on  behalf  of 
 the  COUNTY  or  to  provide  a  service  described  in  the  defini�on  of  CONTRACTOR  as 
 specified  in  §  160.103  of  the  regula�on  to  the  COUNTY,  the  COUNTY  may  permit  the 
 CONTRACTOR  to  create,  receive,  maintain,  or  transmit  Electronic  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on  on  its  behalf  to  the  extent  necessary  to  comply  with  the  legal  mandate 
 without  mee�ng  the  requirements  of  Part  I.,  although  the  COUNTY  will  a�empt  in 
 good  faith  to  obtain  sa�sfactory  assurances  as  required  by  Part  I.  (A),  and  will 
 document  the  a�empt  and  the  reasons  that  these  assurances  cannot  be  obtained,  if 
 not obtained. 

 17 



 EXHIBIT B: 
 STATEMENT OF WORK 

 POLK  COUNTY,  a  poli�cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon  and,  BETTY  SLEDGE  ENTERPRISES, 
 hereina�er called “Contractor,” hereby agree to the following: 

 1.  STATEMENT OF SERVICES 

 A.  Contractor  agrees  to  work  within  scope,  training  and  experience  as  a  Qualified  Mental 
 Health  Professional,  to  provide  services,  support  and  training  that  meets  the  needs  of 
 both Contractor and County as evidenced by the Service Authoriza�on and Ac�vity form. 

 B.  Contractor  shall  perform  all  services  deemed  necessary  in  their  professional  opinion 
 based  upon  their  training,  educa�on  and  exper�se  as  evidenced  in  the  applica�on 
 materials  and  other  professional  endorsements,  notwithstanding  any  limita�ons  set 
 forth in this agreement. 

 C.  Contractor  shall  only  use  methods  or  techniques  in  which  the  Contractor  has 
 documented  training,  educa�on  and  exper�se.  Contractor  will  ensure  services  provided 
 are  within  rules  and  guidelines  of  Oregon  Health  Authority,  Health  Services  Division: 
 Behavioral Health Services, Chapter 309-019. 

 2.  GENERAL INFORMATION 

 A.  Contractors  must  provide  primary  source  verifica�on  of  creden�als.  No  work  will  be 
 assigned  to  Contractors  who  render  direct  service  to  clients  or  pa�ents  un�l  creden�als 
 have been validated for Medicaid claims. 

 B.  Annual  requirements  mandate  that  the  Contractor  will  submit  a  conflict  of  Interest 
 Statement.  Contractor  queries  of  the  OIG  and  EPLS  List  of  Excluded  Individuals/En��es 
 database  will  also  be  performed  annually.  Bases  for  exclusion  include  convic�ons  for 
 program-related  fraud  and  pa�ent  abuse,  licensing  board  ac�ons  and  default  on  Health 
 Educa�on  Assistance  Loans.  It  is  the  expecta�on  that  the  Contractor  will  maintain 
 creden�aling  required  to  perform  job  du�es  in  good  standing.  It  is  the  responsibility  of 
 the  Contractor  to  report  any  circumstances  that  would  jeopardize  this  standing  or  lead 
 to exclusionary status. Failure to do so may lead to contract termina�on 

 C.  Contractor  agrees  to  report  cases  of  suspected  Medicaid,  Medicare  fraud,  waste,  or 
 abuse  to  the  PCBH  Compliance  Officer  at  503-623-9289.  If  there  is  reason  to  believe 
 that  PCBH  cannot  respond  appropriately  to  a  suspected  case  of  fraud,  waste,  or  abuse, 
 or  if  the  case  involves  PCBH,  then  Contractor  agrees  to  make  a  report  to  Ethicspoint  at 
 888-265-4068. 

 18 



 D.  County  may  conduct  performance  reviews  annually  to  assess  Contractor’s  performance 
 as it relates to the services required under this contract. 

 E.  Absences: 

 i.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  the  County  at  least  five  (5)  business  days  in  advance  for  all 
 an�cipated extended absences (i.e. vaca�ons, professional mee�ngs, etc.). 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  the  County  of  unplanned  absences  (ie:  illness  or  other 
 unforeseen events) at least one hour prior to expected work �me. 

 F.  Contractor  agrees  to  provide  10  business  day  no�ce  of  changes  to  their  clinic  schedule 
 availability. 

 3.  AUTHORIZED SERVICES 

 A.  County  will  only  pay  for  service  and  ac�vi�es  that  have  been  pre  authorized  and  agreed 
 upon in wri�ng by both par�es on a Service Ac�vity Authoriza�on Form. 

 4.  RATES AND METHOD OF PAY 

 A.  County  shall  reimburse  the  Contractor  at  the  rate  of  $50.00  per  hour  for  services  as 
 outlined  in  the  Service  Ac�vity  Authoriza�on  form  with  services  paid  on  a  per 
 occurrence  basis  to  the  nearest  quarter  hour  upon  receipt  of  an  invoice.  Reasonable 
 expenses  incurred  by  Contractor  in  carrying  out  the  services  covered  by  this  agreement 
 shall  be  reimbursed  to  contractor  on  a  monthly  basis  upon  invoice  and  appropriate 
 suppor�ng  documenta�on  and  approval  by  the  County.  County  approval  shall  not  be 
 unreasonably  withheld  provided  sufficient  funds  are  available  and  the  costs  incurred 
 relate directly to services provided. 

 B.  County  and  Contractor  further  agree  that  the  total  compensa�on  due  Contractor  shall, 
 in no event, exceed $96,500.00. 

 C.  County  will  have  no  legal  obliga�on  to  pay  for  any  unauthorized  services,  including 
 unauthorized expenditures. 

 19 



 CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET 

 Staff Contact:  Rosana Warren  Phone Number (Ext):  2428 

 Department:  Health Services: Public Health  Consent Calendar Date:  August 02, 2023 

 Contractor Name:  Eddy Heritage Farms, LLC 

 Address:  38088 Kings Valley Highway 

 City, State, Zip:  Philomath, OR 97370 

 Effective Dates - From:  July 01, 2023  Through:  June 30, 2024 

 Contract Amount:  $VARIES 

 Background: 

 Eddy Heritage Farms, LLC, has agreed to provide Public Health services to referred Polk County 
 Public Health individuals. 

 Discussion: 

 This contract is a continuation of services Victoria “Vicki” Baker has been providing Polk County 
 individuals in the past fiscal years. Vicki Baker meets the criteria for a service provider and has been 
 cleared to work with us through a criminal history records review. 

 Fiscal Impact: 

 The Public Health Services budget has sufficient expenditure authority to accommodate this 
 contract. The fiscal year 2023-2024 Public Health budget was prepared in anticipation of this 
 agreement. 

 Recommendation: 

 It is recommended that Polk County sign this agreement with Eddy Heritage Farms, LLC. 

 Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following: 
 Name:  Rosana Warren  E-mail:  hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

 Name:  E-mail: 

 Name:  E-mail: 



 CONTRACT & AGREEMENT SUMMARY 

 CONTRACT NUMBER: 

 COUNTY/DEPARTMENT:  POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 CONTACT PERSON:  ROSANA WARREN 

 DATE ISSUED:  06/26/23 

 CONTRACTOR  EDDY HERITAGE FARMS, LLC 
 38088 KINGS VALLEY HIGHWAY 
 PHILOMATH, OR 97370 
 SSN/ID#: ON FILE 

 CONTACT PERSON:  VICKI BAKER 

 SERVICES PROVIDED:  To provide Registered Die�cian services as described in 
 Exhibit B. 

 EFFECTIVE DATES:  FROM JULY 01, 2023 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2024 

 BUDGET LINE #:  235-8540-528-PH11

 DOLLAR AMOUNT:  VARIES 

 TERMS:  Service Rates per Exhibit B 

 ADDITIONAL 
 COMMENTS/INFORMATION: 

 NOTIFY CONTRACTS TEAM IMMEDIATELY OF ANY CONTRACT TERMINATION 
 HS.CONTRACTS@co.polk.or.us 

Polk County Contract No. 23-164

mailto:HS.CONTRACTS@co.polk.or.us


 AGREEMENT 

 This Agreement is made and entered into by and between 

 POLK COUNTY 
 DIVISION HEALTH 

 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 a poli�cal subdivision of the State of Oregon, hereina�er referred to as "County" and 

 EDDY HERITAGE FARMS, LLC 
 38088 KINGS VALLEY HIGHWAY 

 PHILOMATH, OR 97370 
 SSN/ID#: ON FILE 

 hereina�er referred to as "Contractor"; and, 

 WHEREAS,  County  is  authorized  to  obtain,  by  contract,  the  services  necessary  to  conduct  its 
 opera�on; and 

 WHEREAS,  Contractor  has  available,  or  can  obtain,  the  necessary  licenses  or  cer�ficates 
 required for the performance of said services; 

 NOW,  THEREFORE,  IT  IS  HEREBY  AGREED  by  and  between  the  par�es  above-men�oned,  for  and 
 in considera�on of the mutual promises hereina�er stated as follows: 

 SECTION I: DECLARATION OF SERVICES RENDERED AS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 A.  The  County  is  desirous  of  securing  the  services  of  the  Contractor  to  perform  services 
 more  specifically  outlined  in  Exhibit  B:  Statement  of  Work,  based  on  Contractor’s 
 specialty and capacity, and Polk County’s needs and capacity. 

 B.  The  Contractor  shall  provide  authorized  services  to  Polk  County  referrals  at  Contractor’s 
 facili�es,  Polk  County  Buildings  on  space  available  basis,  and/or  consumer’s  school 
 facility,  work  loca�on,  or  home  depending  upon  the  needs  of  the  individual.  Depending 
 on  the  nature  of  services  provided,  the  loca�on  of  services  may  be  curtailed  by  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement of Work. 

 C.  Services  shall  be  provided  in  accordance  with  the  document  en�tled  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement  of  Work,  which  is  a�ached  and  by  reference  herein,  made  an  integral  part  of 
 this Agreement. 

 1 



 SECTION II:  CONSIDERATION 

 A.  As  considera�on  for  the  services  provided  by  the  Contractor  during  the  period  beginning 
 July  01,  2023,  and  ending  June  30,  2024,  payment  shall  be  retroac�ve  for  approved 
 services  provided  to  Polk  County  referrals  on  or  a�er  the  period  beginning  date.  Any 
 renewals  and/or  changes  to  this  agreement  must  be  submi�ed  in  wri�ng,  in  the  form  of 
 an amendment to this Contract and signed by both Par�es. 

 B.  Agreement  is  effec�ve  upon  the  signature  of  all  par�es.  It  is  understood  by  both  par�es 
 that  no  commitments  have  been  or  are  made  by  either  party  beyond  the  termina�on  of 
 the Agreement. 

 C.  The  County  will  pay  to  the  Contractor,  by  check(s)  or  ACH  direct  payment  upon  receipt  of 
 an  authorized  billing  document  at  the  rates  outlined  in  Exhibit  B  and  as  approved  by  Polk 
 County.  Billings  shall  be  submi�ed  to  HS  Fiscal  either  electronically  to 
 hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us  or  by  mail  to  Polk  County  Health  Services  Business  Services 
 Department,  182  SW  Academy  Street  Suite  204,  Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  County  shall 
 endeavor  remit  payment  within  2-3  weeks  of  receipt  of  appropriate  billing,  suppor�ng 
 documenta�on and signed invoice. 

 D.  It  is  agreed  that  Contractor  shall  accept  payment  from  Polk  County  as  full  and  total 
 payment  for  services  and  that  Contractor  shall  not  bill  any  Polk  County  clients  (or  their 
 insurance) served under this agreement for services delivered hereunder. 

 E.  Contractor  is  engaged  hereby  as  an  independent  contrac tor,  and  the  services  to  be 
 rendered  are  those  of  an  independent  contractor,  subject  to  ORS  Chapter  656,  and  will 
 be so deemed for purposes of the following: 

 i.  Contractor  will  be  solely  responsible  for  payment  of  any  Federal  or  State  taxes 
 required as a result of this Agreement. 

 ii.  This  Agreement  is  not  intended  to  en�tle  Contractor  to  any  benefits  generally 
 granted  to  County  employees.  Without  limita�on,  but  by  way  of  illustra�on,  the 
 benefits  which  are  not  intended  to  be  extended  by  this  Agreement  to  the  Contractor 
 are  vaca�on,  holiday  and  sick  leave,  other  leaves  with  pay,  tenure,  medical  and 
 dental  coverage,  life  and  disability  insurance,  over�me,  Social  Security,  workers' 
 compensa�on, unemployment compensa�on or re�rement benefits . 

 iii.  The  Contractor  is  an  independent  contractor  for  purposes  of  the  Oregon  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  Law  (ORS  Chapter  656)  and  is  solely  liable  for  any  Workers' 
 Compensa�on  coverage  under  this  Agreement.  If  the  Contractor  has  the  assistance 

 2 

mailto:hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us


 of  other  persons  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  qualify 
 and  remain  qualified  for  the  term  of  this  Agreement  as  a  direct  responsibility 
 employer under ORS 656.407 or as a contrib u�ng employer under ORS 656.411. 

 F.  Exhibit  A  –  Business  Associate  Agreement  a�ached  hereto  is  by  this  reference 
 incorporated herein and made an integral part of this agreement. 

 SECTION III:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 A.  Extent  of  Agreement:  This  Agreement  contains  all  the  terms  and  condi�ons  agreed  upon 
 by  the  par�es.  No  other  understandings,  oral  or  otherwise,  regarding  the  subject  ma�er 
 of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the par�es hereto. 

 B.  Cap�ons:  The  cap�ons  or  headings  in  this  Agreement  are  for  convenience  only  and  in  no 
 way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provision of this Agreement. 

 C.  Payment  as  Sole  Monetary  Obliga�on  of  the  County:  The  Contractor  is  engaged  as  an 
 independent  contractor.  Payment  as  provided  herein  shall  be  the  sole  monetary 
 obliga �on  of  the  County.  Unless  otherwise  specified,  the  responsi bility  for  payment  of 
 all  opera�ng  costs,  Federal,  State,  County  or  city  taxes/assessments  and  any  other 
 charges  imposed  by  law  upon  employers  shall  be  the  sole  responsibility  of  the 
 Contractor. 

 D.  Licensing  and  Program  Standards:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply  with  all  applicable 
 State,  County,  and  municipal  standards  for  licensing,  and  any  other  standards  or  criteria 
 described in this Agreement and its a�achments. 

 E.  Contractor-client  Rela�onship:  The  Contractor  will  establish  a  system  through  which  a 
 client  and/or  the  client’s  parents  or  guardian  may  represent  grievances  about  the 
 opera�on  of  the  Contractor’s  service  program.  At  the  �me  arrangements  are  made  for 
 the  Contractor’s  service,  the  Contractor  will  advise  the  child  and  parents  or  guardian  of 
 the provision.  The Contractor shall no�fy the County of all unresolved grievances. 

 F.  Safeguarding of Client Informa�on: 

 i.  The  use  or  disclosure  by  any  party  of  any  informa�on  concern ing  a  recipient  of 
 services  purchased  under  this  Agreement,  for  any  purpose  not  directly  connected 
 with  the  administra �on  of  the  County's  or  the  Contractor's  responsibili�es  with 
 respect  to  such  purchased  services,  is  prohibited,  except  on  wri�en  consent  of  the 
 County,  or  if  the  County  is  not  the  recipient,  on  wri�en  consent  of  the  recipient  or 
 a�orney, or otherwise compliant with Contractor’s obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 3 



 ii.  For  the  purposes  of  safeguarding  protected  client  informa�on,  Contractor  agrees  to 
 abide  by  all  County  rules  and  regula�ons  regarding  Communica�on  technology  as 
 documented  in  the  County’s  Communica�ons  Technology  Policy.  Contractors 
 providing  services  from  a  County  facility  will  be  provided  appropriate  County 
 equipment  to  perform  its  du�es  under  this  agreement.  To  the  extent  that  Contractor 
 elects  to  use  their  own  technology  (computer,  cellular  phone,  etc…)  Contractor 
 warrants  that  such  equipment  shall  be  compliant  with  County  rules  and  regula�ons, 
 and its obliga�ons under Exhibit A. 

 G.  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964  and  Rehabilita�on  Act  of  1973:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply 
 with  the  requirements  of  the  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964,  and  Sec�on  504  of  the 
 Rehabilita �on  Act  of  1973,  and  their  implemen�ng  Federal  regula�ons,  including 
 Execu�ve Order 11246 as amended. 

 H.  Fiscal Responsibility, Records, Controls, Reports, and Monitoring Procedures: 

 i.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to 
 assure  full  compliance  with  Federal  regula�ons  and  the  County’s  guidelines  on 
 allowable use of funds paid by the County under this Agreement. 

 ii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  maintain  fiscal  records  consistent  with  generally  accepted 
 accoun�ng  prac�ces  and  controls,  which  will  properly  reflect  all  direct  and  indirect 
 costs  and  funds  expended  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement.  The  Contractor 
 shall  make  these  records  available  at  reasonable  �mes  upon  request  to  State  and 
 Federal personnel, and other persons authorized by the County. 

 iii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  collect  financial  sta�s�cs  on  a  regular  basis  and  to  make 
 financial reports at �mes in the form prescribed by the County. 

 I.  Program  Records,  Controls,  Reports,  and  Monitoring  Procedures:  The  Contractor  agrees 
 to  maintain  program  records  including  sta�s�cal  records,  and  to  provide  program 
 records  to  the  County  at  �mes  and  in  the  form  prescribed  by  the  County.  The  Contractor 
 agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to  assure  full  compliance 
 with  the  program  and  facili�es  review  (including  mee�ngs  with  consumers,  reviews  of 
 service  records,  review  of  policy  and  procedures,  review  of  staffing  ra�os  and  job 
 descrip�ons,  and  mee�ngs  with  any  staff  directly  of  indirectly  involved  in  the  provision 
 of  services)  may  be  conducted  at  any  reasonable  �me  by  State  and  Federal  personnel 
 and other persons authorized by the County. 

 J.  Reten�on  of  Records:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  retain  all  books,  records,  and  other 
 documents  relevant  to  this  Agreement  for  three  (3)  years  a�er  final  payment  is  made 

 4 



 under  the  Agreement  or  all  pending  ma�ers  are  closed,  whichever  is  later.  If  li�ga�on  or 
 other  ac�on  involving  the  Agreement  is  started  before  the  end  of  the  three  (3)  year 
 period,  the  records  shall  be  retained  un�l  all  issues  arising  out  of  the  ac�on  are  resolved 
 or un�l the end of the three (3) year period, whichever is later. 

 K.  Insurance: 

 i.  Contractor  agrees  that  it  is  an  independent  contractor  and  not  an  agent  of  the 
 County.  The  Contractor  and  the  County  shall  not  be  responsible  for  any  legal  liability, 
 loss,  malprac�ce,  damages,  costs  and  expenses  arising  in  favor  of  any  person  on 
 account  of  personal  injuries,  death  or  property  loss  or  damage  occurring,  growing 
 out  of,  incident  to  or  resul�ng  directly  or  indirectly  from  the  acts  or  omissions  of  the 
 other party under this Agreement. 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  obtain,  and  at  all  �mes  keep  in  effect,  comprehensive  liability 
 insurance  and  property  damage  insurance  covering  ac�vi�es,  opera�ons,  and 
 omissions  of  the  Contractor,  all  subcontractors,  and  all  named  addi�onal  insureds. 
 Contractor  may  sa�sfy  this  requirement  for  general  liability  insurance  in  any  manner 
 allowed  by  ORS  30.282.  Such  liability  insurance,  whatever  the  form,  shall  be  in  an 
 amount  not  less  than  one  million  dollars  ($1,000,000)  with  provision  for  increased 
 coverage  as  such  limits  are  increased  by  legisla�ve  ac�on.  In  the  event  of  unilateral 
 cancella�on  or  restric�on  by  the  insurance  company  of  the  Contractor's  insurance 
 policy  referred  to  in  this  paragraph,  the  Contractor  shall  immediately  no�fy  the 
 County verbally and in wri�ng. 

 iii.  As  evidence  of  the  insurance  coverage  required  by  this  Agreement,  and  prior  to  the 
 execu�on  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  furnish  a  Cer�ficate  of  Insurance  to 
 Polk  County,  to  Polk  County  Health  Services,  182  SW  Academy  Street,  Suite  204, 
 Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  Cer�ficate  form,  to  be  completed  by  the  Contractor's 
 insurer,  naming  Polk  County  as  addi�onal  insured,  will  be  maintained  in  the  County's 
 file of this Agreement. 

 iv.  There  shall  not  be  any  cancella�on,  material  changes  or  failure  to  renew  such 
 insurance policy (policies) without thirty (30) days’ prior no�ce to the County. 

 L.  Subcontrac�ng:  Unless  subcontrac�ng  is  authorized  elsewhere  in  the  Agree ment,  the 
 Contractor  shall  not  enter  into  any  subcontracts  for  any  of  the  work  contemplated  under 
 this  Agreement  without  obtaining  prior  wri�en  approval  from  the  County,  which 
 approval  shall  be  a�ached  to  the  original  Agreement.  Approval  by  the  County  of  a 
 subcontract  shall  not  result  in  any  obliga�ons  of  the  County  in  addi�on  to  the  agreed 
 rates  of  payment  and  total  considera�on.  Any  subcontracts  which  the  County  may 

 5 



 authorize  shall  contain  all  requirements  of  this  Agreement,  and  the  Contractor  shall  be 
 responsible  for  the  performance  of  the  subcontractor.  Contractor  may  subcon tract 
 medical  inves�gator's  du�es  so  long  as  the  sub contractor  possesses  medical 
 qualifica�ons equivalent to those of the Contractor. 

 M.  Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on:  Any  altera�ons,  varia�ons,  modifica�ons  to  or  waivers 
 of  provisions  of  this  Agreement  shall  be  valid  only  when  they  have  been  reduced  to 
 wri�ng,  duly  signed,  and  approved  by  the  Contractor  and  the  County  and  a�ached  to 
 the original of this Agreement. 

 N.  Excuses  for  Nonperformance:  Neither  party  to  this  Agreement  shall  be  held  responsible 
 for  delay  or  failure  in  performance  of  the  ac�vi�es  required  herein  when  such  delay  or 
 failure  is  due  to  causes  beyond  the  control  and  without  the  fault  or  negligence  of  the 
 party.  Such  causes  may  include,  but  are  not  restricted  to,  fire,  flood,  epidemic,  strikes, 
 acts  of  God  or  the  public  enemy,  unusually  severe  weather,  legal  acts  of  public 
 authori�es,  or  delays  or  defaults  caused  by  public  carriers,  which  cannot  reasonably  be 
 forecast  or  provided  against.  Either  party  may  terminate  the  Agreement  a�er 
 reasonably  determining  that  such  delay  or  failure  will  prevent  con�nued  performance  of 
 the  Agreement,  and  a�er  giving  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  other  party  of  the  cause,  its  effect 
 on  Agreement  performance  and  effec �ve  date  of  termina�on.  If  the  Agreement  is  so 
 terminated,  the  obliga�on  of  the  County  shall  be  limited  to  payment  for  services 
 provided in accordance with the Agreement prior to the date of termina�on. 

 O.  Remedies:  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  or  perform  any  of  the  other 
 requirements  under  the  Contract,  and  such  failure  is  not  excused  under  the  paragraph 
 �tled  "Excuses  for  Nonperformance",  the  County,  a�er  giving  the  Contractor  wri�en 
 no�ce  of  such  failure,  may  withhold  part  or  all  of  the  Contractor's  payment  for  the 
 services  un�l  such  failure  is  corrected.  If  the  Contractor  does  not  correct  such  failure 
 within  a  reasonable  �me  allowed  by  the  County,  the  County  may  terminate  the 
 Agreement  in  accordance  with  the  clause  �tled  "Termina�on."  However,  this  paragraph, 
 and  any  ac�ons  taken  or  not  taken  under  it,  shall  not  affect  the  County's  rights  under  the 
 "Termina�on" clause. 

 P.  Termina�on:  This  Agreement  may  be  terminated  by  mutual  consent  of  both  par�es  or 
 unilaterally  by  both  par�es  at  any  �me  upon  thirty  (30)  days’  no�ce  to  the  other  party 
 in  wri�ng  and  delivered  personally  or  by  Cer�fied  Mail.  The  County  may  also  unilaterally 
 terminate  this  Agreement  effec�ve  upon  delivery  of  wri�en  no�ce  to  the  Contrac tor,  or 
 at  such  later  date  as  may  be  established  by  the  County,  under  any  of  the  following 
 condi�ons: 

 6 



 i.  If  funds,  specifically  authorized  by  Legisla�ve  acts,  do  not  become  available  in 
 amounts  sufficient  to  allow  for  purchase  of  the  stated  quan�ty  of  services.  When 
 possible  and  when  agreed  upon  by  the  par�es,  the  Agreement  may  be  modified  in 
 accordance  with  the  paragraph  en�tled  “Re-nego�a�on  or  Modifica�on”  to 
 accommodate a reduc�on in funds. 

 ii.  If  Federal  or  State  laws,  regula�ons  or  guidelines  are  modified  or  changed  in  such  a 
 way  that  the  services  are  no  longer  allowable  or  appropriate  for  purchase  under  this 
 Agreement  or  no  longer  qualify  for  the  funding  proposed  for  payments  authorized  by 
 this Agreement. 

 iii.  If  any  license  or  cer�ficate  required  by  law  or  regula�on  to  be  held  by  the  Contractor 
 to  provide  the  services  required  by  this  Agreement  is  for  any  reason  denied,  revoked, 
 not  renewed,  or  changed  in  such  a  way  that  the  Contractor  no  longer  meets 
 requirements for such license or cer�ficate. 

 iv.  Termina�on  under  this  clause  shall  be  without  prejudice  to  any  obliga�ons  or 
 liabili�es  of  either  party  already  reasonably  incurred  prior  to  such  termina�on, 
 except  that  the  Contractor  shall  be  solely  responsible  for  its  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es 
 a�er  the  termina�on  date,  which  obliga�ons  or  liabili�es  result  from  the 
 Contractor's  failure  to  provide  for  termina�on  of,  or  exercises  the  right  to  terminate, 
 its  commitments.  No  right  of  ac�on  or  damages  shall  accrue  to  the  benefit  of  the 
 Contractor if the Agreement is terminated under this clause. 

 v.  The  County,  by  wri�en  no�ce  of  default  (including  breach  of  contract)  to  the 
 Contractor, may terminate this Agreement: 

 a.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  called  for  by  this  Agreement  within 
 the �me speci fied herein or any extension thereof granted by the County; or 

 b.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  perform  any  of  the  other  requirements  of  this 
 Agreement; or 

 c.  If  the  Contractor  so  fails  to  perform  the  work  required  in  the  Agreement  that 
 performance  of  this  Agreement  in  accordance  with  its  terms  is  endan gered,  and 
 a�er  receipt  of  wri�en  no�ce  from  the  County  specifying  such  failure,  the 
 Contractor  fails  to  correct  such  failure  within  ten  (10)  days  or  such  longer  period 
 as the County may authorize. 

 vi.  If  the  Agreement  is  terminated  under  this  clause,  the  County's  obliga�ons  shall  be 
 limited  to  payment  for  services  provided  in  accordance  with  the  Agreement  prior  to 

 7 



 the  date  of  termina�on,  less  any  damages  suffered  by  the  County.  The  rights  and 
 remedies  of  the  County  in  this  clause  related  to  defaults  (including  breach  of 
 contract)  by  the  Contractor  shall  not  be  exclusive  and  are  in  addi�on  to  any  other 
 rights and remedies provided to the County by law or under this Agreement. 

 Q.  Hold  Harmless:  Except  for  claims  arising  in  whole  from  the  negligence  of  County,  its 
 employees  or  its  agents,  Contractor  agrees  to  indemnify  and  hold  County  harmless  from 
 and  against  all  ac�ons,  suits,  claims  and  demands  arising  out  of  Contractor’s 
 performance  under  this  Contract  and  agrees  to  defend  County  in  such  ac�ons,  suits, 
 claims and demands. 

 R.  Waiver  of  Default:  Waiver  of  any  default  shall  not  be  deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any 
 subsequent  default.  Waiver  of  breach  of  any  provision  of  the  Agreement  shall  not  be 
 deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any  other  or  subsequent  breach  and  shall  not  be  construed  to 
 be  a  modifica�on  of  the  terms  of  the  Agreement  unless  stated  to  be  such  in  wri�ng, 
 signed  by  an  authorized  representa�ve  of  the  County,  and  a�ached  to  the  original 
 Agreement in accordance with the paragraph en�tled "Re-nego�a�on or Modifica�on". 

 S.  Severability:  The  par�es  agree  that  if  any  term  or  provision  of  this  Agreement  is  declared 
 by  a  court  of  competent  jurisdic�on  to  be  illegal  or  in  conflict  with  any  law,  the  validity  of 
 the  remaining  terms  and  provisions  shall  not  be  affected,  and  the  rights  and  obliga�ons 
 of  the  par�es  shall  be  construed  and  enforced  as  if  the  Agreement  did  not  contain  the 
 par�cular term or provision held to be invalid. 

 T.  Fees  Prohibited:  The  Contractor  will  not  impose  or  demand  any  fees  from  any  person  or 
 agency  for  services  provided  and  paid  for  under  this  Agreement,  unless  the  fees  have 
 been approved in advance by the County in wri�ng. 

 U.  Non-Discrimina�on:  The  Contractor  acknowledges  that  they  are  an  equal  opportunity 
 employer  and  no  person  shall  be  denied  services  or  discrimi nated  against  on  the  basis  of 
 race,  color,  religion,  sex,  sexual  orienta�on,  na�onal  origin,  marital  status  or  age,  and 
 there  shall  be  no  discrimina�on  in  the  selec�on,  compensa�on  or  the  employ ment 
 prac�ces with respect to personnel coming under the auspices of the Contractor. 

 V.  Assignment  of  Agreement:  The  Contractor  shall  not  assign  or  transfer  its  interest  in  this 
 Agreement  without  prior  wri�en  approval  of  the  County,  which  shall  be  a�ached  to  the 
 original  Agreement.  Any  such  assignment,  if  approved,  is  subject  to  such  condi�ons  and 
 provisions,  as  the  County  may  deem  necessary.  No  approval  by  the  County  of  any 
 assignment  or  transfer  of  interest  shall  be  deemed  to  create  any  obliga�on  of  the  county 
 in addi�on to the agreed rates of payment and total Agreement considera�on. 

 8 



 W.  Funds  Authorized  and  Available:  The  County  cer�fies  that  at  the  �me  of  signing  this 
 Agree ment,  sufficient  funds  are  authorized  and  available,  or  are  an�cipated  to  be 
 available,  for  expenditure  to  finance  costs  of  this  Agreement  within  the  County's  current 
 appropri a�on or limita�on. 

 X.  Recovery  of  Overpayments:  If  billings  under  this  Agreement,  or  under  any  Agreement 
 between  the  Contractor  and  the  County,  result  in  payments  to  the  Contractor  for  which 
 the  Contractor  is  not  en�tled  under  the  terms  of  such  Agreement,  the  County,  a�er 
 giving  wri�en  no�fica�on  to  the  Contractor,  may  withhold  from  payments  due  to  the 
 Contractor  under  this  Agreement  such  amounts,  over  such  periods  of  �me,  as  are 
 necessary to recover the amount of the overpayment. 

 Y.  Criminal  History  Records  Checks:  Contractor  agrees  to  authorize  a  review  of  state  and 
 federal  records  by  Polk  County  as  a  qualified  en�ty,  to  determine  the  nature  of  any 
 criminal  ac�vity  the  Contractor  may  have  been  involved  in  accordance  with  OAR 
 943-007-001  for  purposes  described  in  OAR  407-007-0400.  No  work  will  be  assigned  to 
 Contractor  un�l  a  Criminal  History  Check  is  completed  and  verified  by  the  qualified 
 en�ty.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  Polk  County  within  five  days  of  being  arrested,  charged,  or 
 convicted of any crime. 

 SECTION IV:  CLAUSES REQUIRED BY OREGON LAW FOR PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS 

 A.  Payment  of  Subcontractors,  Industrial  Accident  Fund  Contribu�ons,  Liens  and 
 Withholding Taxes: 

 i.  Contractor  shall  make  payment  promptly,  as  due,  to  all  persons  supplying  to  such 
 contractor  labor  or  material  for  the  prosecu�on  of  the  work  provided  for  in  this 
 contract. 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  pay  all  contribu�ons  or  amounts  due  the  Industrial  Accident  Fund 
 from such contractor or subcontractor incurred in the performance of the contract. 

 iii.  Contractor  shall  not  permit  any  lien  or  claim  to  be  filed  or  prosecuted  against  the 
 state,  county,  school  district,  municipality,  Municipal  Corpora�on  or  subdivisions 
 thereof, on account of any labor or material furnished. 

 iv.  Contractor  shall  pay  to  the  Department  of  Revenue  all  sums  withheld  from 
 employees pursuant to ORS 316.167. 

 B.  Payment  of  Claims  by  County  :  If  Contractor  fails,  neglects  or  refuses  to  make  prompt 
 payment  of  any  claim  for  labor  or  services  furnished  to  the  contractor  or  a  subcontractor 
 by  any  person  in  connec�on  with  the  public  contract  as  such  claim  becomes  due,  the 

 9 



 proper  officer  or  officers  represen�ng  Polk  County  may  pay  such  claim  to  the  person 
 furnishing  the  labor  or  services  and  charge  the  amount  of  payment  against  funds  due  or 
 to  become  due  the  Contractor  by  reason  of  this  contract.  Payment  of  a  claim  in  this 
 manner  shall  not  relieve  the  contractor  or  contractor’s  surety  from  obliga�on  with 
 respect to any unpaid claims. 

 C.  Hours  of  Labor:  All  laborers  providing  contract  services  shall  be  paid  at  least  �me  and  a 
 half  for  all  over�me  worked  in  excess  of  40  hours  in  any  one  week,  except  for  individuals 
 under  these  contracts  who  are  excluded  under  ORS  653.010  to  653.261  or  under  29  USC 
 sec�on 201 to 209 from receiving over�me. 

 D.  Payment  for  Medical  Care:  Contractor  shall  promptly,  as  due,  make  payment  to  any 
 person,  co-partnership,  associa�on  or  corpora�on,  furnishing  medical,  surgical  and 
 hospital  care  or  other  needed  care  and  a�en�on,  incident  to  sickness  or  injury,  to  the 
 employees  for  such  Contractor,  of  all  sums  which  the  Contractor  agrees  to  pay  for  such 
 services  and  all  moneys  and  sums  which  the  contractor  collected  or  deducted  from  the 
 wages  of  employees  pursuant  to  any  law,  contract  or  agreement  for  the  purpose  of 
 providing or paying such service. 

 E.  Providing  Workers’  Compensa�on  Insurance:  All  employers  working  under  this  contract 
 are subject employers who will comply with ORS 656.017. 

 F.  Health  Care  Benefits  for  Employees:  The  Contractor  shall  provide  health  care  benefits  to 
 all  employees  who  are  performing  services  previously  performed  by  public  employees  if 
 the  condi�ons  specified  in  ORS  653.767  require  such  payment.  Benefits  must  equal  or 
 exceed  those  benefits  specified  in  ORS  279.315(3).  This  clause  does  not  apply  to 
 contracts for temporary, non-ongoing or nonrecurring contracts. 

 G.  Americans  with  Disabili�es  Act  Compliance:  Contractor  agrees  that  Contractor  will 
 comply  and  does  comply  with  all  relevant  provisions  of  the  Americans  with  Disabili�es 
 Act, to the extent required by the Act. 

 10 





 EXHIBIT A: 
 BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

 Between 
 POLK COUNTY  and  EDDY HERITAGE FARMS, LLC 

 1.  DEFINITIONS: 

 Except  as  otherwise  defined  in  this  Business  Associate  Agreement  (BA  Agreement),  any 
 and  all  italicized  terms  herein  shall  have  the  same  defini�on  as  those  in  the  HIPAA 
 Privacy  Rule.  1  Henceforth,  Polk  County,  a  poli�cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon, 
 shall  be  referred  to  as  “COUNTY”  and  Eddy  Heritage  Farms,  LLC,  shall  be  referred  to  as 
 “CONTRACTOR”. 

 2.  OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF CONTRACTOR: 

 A.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  not  use  or  disclose  Protected  Health  Informa�on  other  than 
 as permi�ed or required by this BA Agreement or as permi�ed or required by law. 

 B.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  use  appropriate  safeguards  to  prevent  use  or  disclosure  of 
 Protected Health Informa�on other than as provided for by this BA Agreement. 

 C.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  mi�gate,  to  the  extent  prac�cable,  any  harmful  effect  that  is 
 known  to  CONTRACTOR  of  a  use  or  disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  by 
 CONTRACTOR in viola�on of the requirements of this BA Agreement. 

 D.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  report  to  the  COUNTY  any  use  or  disclosure  of  the  Protected 
 Health  Informa�on  not  provided  for  by  this  BA  Agreement  of  which  it  becomes 
 aware. 

 E.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  ensure  that  any  agent,  including  a  subcontractor,  to  whom  it 
 provides  Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by, 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  agrees  to  the  same  restric�ons  and 
 condi�ons  that  apply  through  this  BA  Agreement  to  CONTRACTOR  with  respect  to 
 such informa�on. 

 1  The use and disclosure of protected health informa�on in performance of Business Associate func�ons is 
 governed by the Standards for Privacy of Individually Iden�fiable Health Informa�on (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164), 
 referred to as the Privacy Rule, which were issued by the United States Department of Health and Human Services 
 pursuant to Public Law 104-191, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA). The use 
 and disclosure of protected health informa�on is also governed by laws of the State of Oregon and by other federal 
 laws. 

 12 



 F.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  access, 
 at  the  request  of  the  COUNTY,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for  reasonable 
 compliance,  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  to  the 
 COUNTY  or,  as  directed  by  the  COUNTY,  to  an  Individual  in  order  to  meet  the 
 requirements under 45 CFR § 164.524. 

 G.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  any 
 amendment(s)  to  Protected  Health  Informa�on  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  that  the 
 COUNTY  directs  or  agrees  to  pursuant  to  45  CFR  §  164.526  at  the  request  of 
 CONTRACTOR,  or  an  Individual,  and  in  the  �me  and  manner  necessary  for 
 reasonable compliance. 

 H.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  internal  prac�ces,  books,  and  records,  including 
 policies  and  procedures  and  Protected  Health  Informa�on,  rela�ng  to  the  use  and 
 disclosure  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  available  to  the  COUNTY  or  to  the  Secretary 
 of  the  Department  of  Health  and  Human  Services  ,  in  a  �me  and  manner  agreed 
 between  the  COUNTY  and  CONTRACTOR  or  designated  by  the  Secretary,  for 
 purposes  of  the  Secretary  determining  the  COUNTY’S  compliance  with  the  Privacy 
 Rule. 

 I.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  document  such  disclosures  of  Protected  Health  Informa�on 
 and  informa�on  related  to  such  disclosures  as  would  be  required  for  the  COUNTY  to 
 respond  to  a  request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected 
 Health Informa�on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 J.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  to  the  COUNTY  or  an  Individual,  in  the  �me  and 
 manner  necessary  for  reasonable  compliance,  informa�on  collected  in  accordance 
 with  sec�on  2.A  of  this  BA  Agreement,  to  permit  the  COUNTY  to  respond  to  a 
 request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accoun�ng  of  disclosures  of  Protected  Health 
 Informa�on in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 3.  PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY CONTRACTOR: Except as otherwise limited in 
 this BA Agreement, CONTRACTOR may use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on to 
 perform certain health plan func�ons for or on behalf of the COUNTY as specified in the 
 Polk County Agreement and in this BA Agreement provided that such use or disclosure 
 would not violate the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY or the minimum necessary 
 policies and procedures of the COUNTY. 

 13 



 4.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE COUNTY: 

 A.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any limita�on(s) in the  No�ce of Privacy 
 Prac�ces  of the COUNTY in accordance with 45 CFR  § 164.520, to the extent that 
 such limita�on may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected Health 
 Informa�on. 

 B.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any changes in, or revoca�on of, 
 permission by Individual to use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on, to the 
 extent that such changes may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected 
 Health Informa�on. 

 C.  The COUNTY shall no�fy CONTRACTOR of any restric�on to the use or disclosure of 
 Protected Health Informa�on that the COUNTY has agreed to in accordance with 45 
 CFR § 164.522, to the extent that such restric�on may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or 
 disclosure of Protected Health Informa�on. 

 5.  PERMISSIBLE REQUESTS BY THE COUNTY: The COUNTY shall not request CONTRACTOR to 
 use or disclose Protected Health Informa�on in any manner that would not be 
 permissible under the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY except if such use or 
 disclosure is permi�ed under the Agreement between the COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 

 6.  TERM AND TERMINATION: 

 A.  Term  . This BA Agreement shall be effec�ve as of July  01, 2023, and shall terminate 
 when all of the Protected Health Informa�on provided by the COUNTY to 
 CONTRACTOR, or created or received by CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY, is 
 destroyed or returned to the COUNTY, or, if it is infeasible to return or destroy 
 Protected Health Informa�on, protec�ons are extended to such informa�on, in 
 accordance with the termina�on provisions in this Sec�on. 

 B.  Termina�on for Cause  . Upon the COUNTY’S knowledge  of a material breach by 
 CONTRACTOR, the COUNTY shall either: 

 i.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to cure the breach without the 
 interven�on of the COUNTY within the �meline specified in Sec�on III (P) of the 
 Polk County Agreement; or 

 ii.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to terminate this BA Agreement and 
 the Polk County Agreement within the �meline specified in Sec�on III of the Polk 
 County Agreement. At the direc�on of its Board of Directors, the COUNTY may 

 14 



 terminate this BA Agreement and the Polk County Agreement as permi�ed in 
 Sec�on III of the Polk County Agreement if CONTRACTOR has not cured the 
 breach upon conclusion of the technical assistance and correc�ve ac�on 
 described in paragraph (i.) of this sec�on; or 

 iii.  If neither termina�on nor cure is feasible, the COUNTY shall report the viola�on 
 to the Secretary. 

 C.  Effect of Termina�on  . 

 i.  Except as provided in paragraph (ii.) of this sec�on, upon termina�on of this BA 
 Agreement, for any reason, CONTRACTOR shall return or destroy all Protected 
 Health Informa�on received from the COUNTY, or created or received by 
 CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY. This provision shall apply to Protected 
 Health Informa�on that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of 
 CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall retain no copies of the Protected Health 
 Informa�on. 

 ii.  In the event that CONTRACTOR determines that returning or destroying the 
 Protected Health Informa�on is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall provide to the 
 COUNTY wri�en no�fica�on of the condi�ons that make return or destruc�on 
 infeasible. Upon wri�en acknowledgement by the COUNTY that the return or 
 destruc�on of Protected Health Informa�on is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall 
 extend the protec�ons of this BA Agreement to such Protected Health 
 Informa�on and limit further uses and disclosures of such Protected Health 
 Informa�on to those purposed that make the return or destruc�on infeasible, for 
 so long as CONTRACTOR maintains such Protected Health Informa�on. 

 7.  MISCELLANEOUS: 

 A.  Regulatory References  . References in this BA Agreement  to the Privacy Rule or any 
 sec�on of the Privacy Rule means the Privacy Rule or sec�on as in effect or as 
 amended. 

 B.  Amendment  . The COUNTY and CONTRACTOR agree to take  such ac�on as is 
 necessary to amend this BA Agreement from �me to �me as is necessary for the 
 COUNTY to comply with the requirement of the Privacy Rule and HIPAA. 

 C.  Survival  . The respec�ve rights and obliga�ons of  CONTRACTOR under Sec�on 6.C of 
 this BA Agreement shall survive the termina�on of this BA Agreement. 

 15 



 D.  Interpreta�on  . Any ambiguity in this BA Agreement shall be resolved to permit the 
 COUNTY to comply with the Privacy Rule. In the event of any inconsistency between 
 the provisions of this BA Agreement and the mandatory provisions of the Privacy 
 Rule, the Privacy Rule shall control. Where laws in the State of Oregon or other 
 federal law is more stringent than the Privacy Rule, the more stringent Oregon or 
 federal law shall control. 

 8.  SECURITY RULE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT LANGUAGE: 

 A.  Background Requirement  : The COUNTY, in accordance  with § 164.306 and § 164.308 
 (b), may permit the CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic 
 Protected Health Informa�on on the COUNTY’S behalf only if the COUNTY obtains 
 sa�sfactory assurances, in accordance with § 164.314(a) that the CONTRACTOR will 
 appropriately safeguard the informa�on. The COUNTY must document the 
 sa�sfactory assurances through a wri�en contract or other arrangement with the 
 CONTRACTOR. 

 B.  Part I. Security Assurances  : The CONTRACTOR will Implement  administra�ve, 
 physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the 
 confiden�ality, integrity, and availability of the electronic protected health 
 informa�on that it creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of the 
 COUNTY as required by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 
 1996 and the requirements of Health Insurance Reform, the Security Standards 
 (45CFR Parts 160, 162 & 164); 

 i.  Ensure that any agent, including a SUBCONTRACTOR, to whom it provides such 
 informa�on, agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards to 
 protect it. 

 ii.  Report to the COUNTY any security incident of which it becomes aware. 

 iii.  Authorize termina�on of the contract by the COUNTY, if the COUNTY determines 
 that the business associate has violated a material term of the contract. 

 C.  Part II.  Other arrangements:  When the COUNTY and the  CONTRACTOR are both 
 governmental en��es, the COUNTY is in compliance with the requirements if: 

 i.  It enters into a memorandum of understanding with the CONTRACTOR that 
 contains terms that accomplish the objec�ves of Part I.; or 

 16 



 ii.  Other  law  (including  regula�ons  adopted  by  the  COUNTY  or  the  CONTRACTOR) 
 contains  requirements  applicable  to  the  CONTRACTOR  that  accomplish  the 
 objec�ves of Part I. 

 D.  If the CONTRACTOR is required by law to perform a func�on or ac�vity on behalf of 
 the COUNTY or to provide a service described in the defini�on of CONTRACTOR as 
 specified in § 160.103 of the regula�on to the COUNTY, the COUNTY may permit the 
 CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic Protected Health 
 Informa�on on its behalf to the extent necessary to comply with the legal mandate 
 without mee�ng the requirements of Part I., although the COUNTY will a�empt in 
 good faith to obtain sa�sfactory assurances as required by Part I. (A), and will 
 document the a�empt and the reasons that these assurances cannot be obtained, if 
 not obtained. 

 17 



 EXHIBIT B: 
 STATEMENT OF WORK 

 POLK  COUNTY,  a  poli�cal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon  and,  EDDY  HERITAGE  FARMS,  LLC, 
 hereina�er called “Contractor,” hereby agree to the following: 

 1.  STATEMENT OF SERVICES 

 A.  Contractor  agrees  to  work  within  scope,  training  and  experience  as  a  Registered 
 Die�cian,  to  provide  services,  support  and  training  that  meets  the  needs  of  both 
 Contractor and County as evidenced by the Service Authoriza�on and Ac�vity form. 

 B.  Contractor  shall  perform  all  services  deemed  necessary  in  their  professional  opinion 
 based  upon  their  training,  educa�on  and  exper�se  as  evidenced  in  the  applica�on 
 materials  and  other  professional  endorsements,  notwithstanding  any  limita�ons  set 
 forth in this agreement. 

 C.  Contractor  shall  only  use  methods  or  techniques  in  which  the  Contractor  has 
 documented  training,  educa�on  and  exper�se.  Contractor  will  ensure  services  provided 
 are  within  rules  and  guidelines  of  Oregon  Health  Authority,  Public  Health  Division, 
 Chapter 333. 

 2.  GENERAL INFORMATION 

 A.  Contractors  must  provide  primary  source  verifica�on  of  creden�als.  No  work  will  be 
 assigned  to  Contractors  who  render  direct  service  to  clients  or  pa�ents  un�l  creden�als 
 have been validated for Medicaid claims. 

 B.  Annual  requirements  mandate  that  the  Contractor  will  submit  a  conflict  of  Interest 
 Statement.  Contractor  queries  of  the  OIG  and  EPLS  List  of  Excluded  Individuals/En��es 
 database  will  also  be  performed  annually.  Bases  for  exclusion  include  convic�ons  for 
 program-related  fraud  and  pa�ent  abuse,  licensing  board  ac�ons  and  default  on  Health 
 Educa�on  Assistance  Loans.  It  is  the  expecta�on  that  the  Contractor  will  maintain 
 creden�aling  required  to  perform  job  du�es  in  good  standing.  It  is  the  responsibility  of 
 the  Contractor  to  report  any  circumstances  that  would  jeopardize  this  standing  or  lead 
 to exclusionary status. Failure to do so may lead to contract termina�on  . 

 C.  Contractor  agrees  to  report  cases  of  suspected  Medicaid,  Medicare  fraud,  waste,  or 
 abuse  to  the  PCBH  Compliance  Officer  at  503-623-9289.  If  there  is  reason  to  believe 
 that  PCBH  cannot  respond  appropriately  to  a  suspected  case  of  fraud,  waste,  or  abuse, 
 or  if  the  case  involves  PCBH,  then  Contractor  agrees  to  make  a  report  to  Ethicspoint  at 
 888-265-4068. 

 18 



 D.  County  may  conduct  performance  reviews  annually  to  assess  Contractor’s  performance 
 as it relates to the services required under this contract. 

 E.  Absences: 

 i.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  the  County  at  least  five  (5)  business  days  in  advance  for  all 
 an�cipated extended absences (i.e. vaca�ons, professional mee�ngs, etc.). 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  no�fy  the  County  of  unplanned  absences  (ie:  illness  or  other 
 unforeseen events) at least one hour prior to expected work �me. 

 F.  Contractor  agrees  to  provide  10  business  day  no�ce  of  changes  to  their  clinic  schedule 
 availability. 

 G.  All  client  records  are  considered  the  property  of  the  County  and  shall  not  be  retained  by 
 the  Contractor.  Contractor  shall  have  all  service  notes  and  documenta�on  completed 
 within  three  business  days  of  service  encounter.  Contractor  shall  maintain  client/pa�ent 
 records and documenta�on within CMS guidelines. 

 H.  Contractor  may  elect  to  use  the  electronic  health  record  system  supported  by  the 
 County.  Contractor  shall  provide  County  with  a  Cer�ficate  of  Electronic  Health  Record 
 Technology  (CEHRT)  when  Contractor  elects  to  use  a  system  that  is  not  supported  by  the 
 County or Oregon Health Authority. 

 I.  Documents  that  are  required  for  billing  shall  be  submi�ed  three  days  a�er  the  close  of 
 business  on  the  last  weekday  of  each  month.  Documenta�on  found  to  be  out  of 
 compliance  with  County  and/or  State  guidelines  shall  be  corrected  within  ten  (10) 
 business days. 

 3.  AUTHORIZED SERVICES 

 A.  County  will  only  pay  for  service  and  ac�vi�es  that  have  been  pre  authorized  and  agreed 
 upon in wri�ng by both par�es on a Service Ac�vity Authoriza�on Form. 

 4.  RATES AND METHOD OF PAY 

 A.  County  shall  reimburse  the  Contractor  at  the  rate  of  $60.00  per  hour  for  services  as 
 outlined  in  the  Service  Ac�vity  Authoriza�on  form  with  services  paid  on  a  per 
 occurrence basis to the nearest quarter hour upon receipt of an invoice. 

 B.  County  will  have  no  legal  obliga�on  to  pay  for  any  unauthorized  services,  including 
 unauthorized expenditures. 

 19 



 CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET 

 Staff Contact:  Rosana Warren  Phone Number (Ext):  2428 

 Department:  Health Services: Behavioral Health  Consent Calendar Date:  August 02, 2023 

 Contractor Name:  Erin Dannecker, LLC 

 Address:  2004 Browning Avenue S 

 City, State, Zip:  Salem, OR 97302 

 Effective Dates - From:  July 01, 2023  Through:  June 30, 2024 

 Contract Amount:  Varies 

 Background: 

 Erin Dannecker, LLC has agreed to provide Behavioral Health services to referred Polk County 
 Behavioral Health individuals. 

 Discussion: 

 This contract is a continuation of services Erin Dannecker has been providing Polk County 
 individuals in the past fiscal years. Erin Dannecker meets the criteria for a service provider and has 
 been cleared to work with us through a criminal history records review. 

 Fiscal Impact: 

 The Behavioral Health Services budget has sufficient expenditure authority to accommodate this 
 contract. The fiscal year 2023-2024 Behavioral Health Outpatient budget was prepared in 
 anticipation of this agreement. 

 Recommendation: 

 It is recommended that Polk County sign this agreement with Erin Dannecker, LLC. 

 Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following: 
 Name:  Rosana Warren  E-mail:  hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us 

 Name:  E-mail: 

 Name:  E-mail: 



 CONTRACT & AGREEMENT SUMMARY 

 CONTRACT NUMBER: 

 COUNTY/DEPARTMENT:  POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 
 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 CONTACT PERSON:  ROSANA WARREN 

 DATE ISSUED:  07/05/23 

 CONTRACTOR  ERIN DANNECKER, LLC 
 2004 BROWNING AVENUE S 
 SALEM, OR 97302 
 SSN/ID#: ON FILE 

 CONTACT PERSON:  ERIN DANNECKER 

 SERVICES PROVIDED:  To provide Behavioral Health Clinical services as outlined in 
 Exhibit B. 

 EFFECTIVE DATES:  FROM JULY 01, 2023 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2024 

 BUDGET LINE #:  240-8540-540-M20 

 DOLLAR AMOUNT:  VARIES 

 TERMS:  Service Rates per Exhibit B 

 ADDITIONAL 
 COMMENTS/INFORMATION: 

 NOTIFY CONTRACTS TEAM IMMEDIATELY OF ANY CONTRACT TERMINATION 
 HS.CONTRACTS@co.polk.or.us 

Polk County Contract No. 23-165



 AGREEMENT 

 This Agreement is made and entered into by and between 

 POLK COUNTY 
 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

 182 SW ACADEMY STREET 
 DALLAS, OR 97338 
 ID#: 93-6002310 

 a poliƟcal subdivision of the State of Oregon, hereinaŌer referred to as "County" and 

 ERIN DANNECKER, LLC 
 2004 BROWNING AVENUE S 

 SALEM, OR 97302 
 SSN/ID#: ON FILE 

 hereinaŌer referred to as "Contractor"; and, 

 WHEREAS,  County  is  authorized  to  obtain,  by  contract,  the  services  necessary  to  conduct  its 
 operaƟon; and 

 WHEREAS,  Contractor  has  available,  or  can  obtain,  the  necessary  licenses  or  cerƟficates 
 required for the performance of said services; 

 NOW,  THEREFORE,  IT  IS  HEREBY  AGREED  by  and  between  the  parƟes  above-menƟoned,  for  and 
 in consideraƟon of the mutual promises hereinaŌer stated as follows: 

 SECTION I: DECLARATION OF SERVICES RENDERED AS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 A.  The  County  is  desirous  of  securing  the  services  of  the  Contractor  to  perform  services 
 more  specifically  outlined  in  Exhibit  B:  Statement  of  Work,  based  on  Contractor’s 
 specialty and capacity, and Polk County’s needs and capacity. 

 B.  The  Contractor  shall  provide  authorized  services  to  Polk  County  referrals  at  Contractor’s 
 faciliƟes,  Polk  County  Buildings  on  space  available  basis,  and/or  consumer’s  school 
 facility,  work  locaƟon,  or  home  depending  upon  the  needs  of  the  individual.  Depending 
 on  the  nature  of  services  provided,  the  locaƟon  of  services  may  be  curtailed  by  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement of Work. 

 C.  Services  shall  be  provided  in  accordance  with  the  document  enƟtled  Exhibit  B: 
 Statement  of  Work,  which  is  aƩached  and  by  reference  herein,  made  an  integral  part  of 
 this Agreement. 

 1 



 SECTION II:  CONSIDERATION 

 A.  As  consideraƟon  for  the  services  provided  by  the  Contractor  during  the  period  beginning 
 July  1,  2023,  and  ending  June  30,  2024,  payment  shall  be  retroacƟve  for  approved 
 services  provided  to  Polk  County  referrals  on  or  aŌer  the  period  beginning  date.  Any 
 renewals  and/or  changes  to  this  agreement  must  be  submiƩed  in  wriƟng,  in  the  form  of 
 an amendment to this Contract and signed by both ParƟes. 

 B.  Agreement  is  effecƟve  upon  the  signature  of  all  parƟes.  It  is  understood  by  both  parƟes 
 that  no  commitments  have  been  or  are  made  by  either  party  beyond  the  terminaƟon  of 
 the Agreement. 

 C.  The  County  will  pay  to  the  Contractor,  by  check(s)  or  ACH  direct  payment  upon  receipt  of 
 an  authorized  billing  document  at  the  rates  outlined  in  Exhibit  B  and  as  approved  by  Polk 
 County.  Billings  shall  be  submiƩed  to  HS  Fiscal  either  electronically  to 
 hs.fiscal@co.polk.or.us  or  by  mail  to  Polk  County  Health  Services  Business  Services 
 Department,  182  SW  Academy  Street  Suite  204,  Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  County  shall 
 endeavor  remit  payment  within  2-3  weeks  of  receipt  of  appropriate  billing,  supporƟng 
 documentaƟon and signed invoice. 

 D.  It  is  agreed  that  Contractor  shall  accept  payment  from  Polk  County  as  full  and  total 
 payment  for  services  and  that  Contractor  shall  not  bill  any  Polk  County  clients  (or  their 
 insurance) served under this agreement for services delivered hereunder. 

 E.  Contractor  is  engaged  hereby  as  an  independent  contrac tor,  and  the  services  to  be 
 rendered  are  those  of  an  independent  contractor,  subject  to  ORS  Chapter  656,  and  will 
 be so deemed for purposes of the following: 

 i.  Contractor  will  be  solely  responsible  for  payment  of  any  Federal  or  State  taxes 
 required as a result of this Agreement. 

 ii.  This  Agreement  is  not  intended  to  enƟtle  Contractor  to  any  benefits  generally 
 granted  to  County  employees.  Without  limitaƟon,  but  by  way  of  illustraƟon,  the 
 benefits  which  are  not  intended  to  be  extended  by  this  Agreement  to  the  Contractor 
 are  vacaƟon,  holiday  and  sick  leave,  other  leaves  with  pay,  tenure,  medical  and 
 dental  coverage,  life  and  disability  insurance,  overƟme,  Social  Security,  workers' 
 compensaƟon, unemployment compensaƟon or reƟrement benefits . 

 iii.  The  Contractor  is  an  independent  contractor  for  purposes  of  the  Oregon  Workers' 
 CompensaƟon  Law  (ORS  Chapter  656)  and  is  solely  liable  for  any  Workers' 
 CompensaƟon  coverage  under  this  Agreement.  If  the  Contractor  has  the  assistance 

 2 



 of  other  persons  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  qualify 
 and  remain  qualified  for  the  term  of  this  Agreement  as  a  direct  responsibility 
 employer under ORS 656.407 or as a contrib uƟng employer under ORS 656.411. 

 F.  Exhibit  A  –  Business  Associate  Agreement  aƩached  hereto  is  by  this  reference 
 incorporated herein and made an integral part of this agreement. 

 SECTION III:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 A.  Extent  of  Agreement:  This  Agreement  contains  all  the  terms  and  condiƟons  agreed  upon 
 by  the  parƟes.  No  other  understandings,  oral  or  otherwise,  regarding  the  subject  maƩer 
 of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the parƟes hereto. 

 B.  CapƟons:  The  capƟons  or  headings  in  this  Agreement  are  for  convenience  only  and  in  no 
 way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provision of this Agreement. 

 C.  Payment  as  Sole  Monetary  ObligaƟon  of  the  County:  The  Contractor  is  engaged  as  an 
 independent  contractor.  Payment  as  provided  herein  shall  be  the  sole  monetary 
 obliga Ɵon  of  the  County.  Unless  otherwise  specified,  the  responsi bility  for  payment  of 
 all  operaƟng  costs,  Federal,  State,  County  or  city  taxes/assessments  and  any  other 
 charges  imposed  by  law  upon  employers  shall  be  the  sole  responsibility  of  the 
 Contractor. 

 D.  Licensing  and  Program  Standards:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply  with  all  applicable 
 State,  County,  and  municipal  standards  for  licensing,  and  any  other  standards  or  criteria 
 described in this Agreement and its aƩachments. 

 E.  Contractor-client  RelaƟonship:  The  Contractor  will  establish  a  system  through  which  a 
 client  and/or  the  client’s  parents  or  guardian  may  represent  grievances  about  the 
 operaƟon  of  the  Contractor’s  service  program.  At  the  Ɵme  arrangements  are  made  for 
 the  Contractor’s  service,  the  Contractor  will  advise  the  child  and  parents  or  guardian  of 
 the provision.  The Contractor shall noƟfy the County of all unresolved grievances. 

 F.  Safeguarding of Client InformaƟon: 

 i.  The  use  or  disclosure  by  any  party  of  any  informaƟon  concern ing  a  recipient  of 
 services  purchased  under  this  Agreement,  for  any  purpose  not  directly  connected 
 with  the  administra Ɵon  of  the  County's  or  the  Contractor's  responsibiliƟes  with 
 respect  to  such  purchased  services,  is  prohibited,  except  on  wriƩen  consent  of  the 
 County,  or  if  the  County  is  not  the  recipient,  on  wriƩen  consent  of  the  recipient  or 
 aƩorney, or otherwise compliant with Contractor’s obligaƟons under Exhibit A. 

 3 



 ii.  For  the  purposes  of  safeguarding  protected  client  informaƟon,  Contractor  agrees  to 
 abide  by  all  County  rules  and  regulaƟons  regarding  CommunicaƟon  technology  as 
 documented  in  the  County’s  CommunicaƟons  Technology  Policy.  Contractors 
 providing  services  from  a  County  facility  will  be  provided  appropriate  County 
 equipment  to  perform  its  duƟes  under  this  agreement.  To  the  extent  that  Contractor 
 elects  to  use  their  own  technology  (computer,  cellular  phone,  etc…)  Contractor 
 warrants  that  such  equipment  shall  be  compliant  with  County  rules  and  regulaƟons, 
 and its obligaƟons under Exhibit A. 

 G.  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964  and  RehabilitaƟon  Act  of  1973:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  comply 
 with  the  requirements  of  the  Civil  Rights  Act  of  1964,  and  SecƟon  504  of  the 
 Rehabilita Ɵon  Act  of  1973,  and  their  implemenƟng  Federal  regulaƟons,  including 
 ExecuƟve Order 11246 as amended. 

 H.  Fiscal Responsibility, Records, Controls, Reports, and Monitoring Procedures: 

 i.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to 
 assure  full  compliance  with  Federal  regulaƟons  and  the  County’s  guidelines  on 
 allowable use of funds paid by the County under this Agreement. 

 ii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  maintain  fiscal  records  consistent  with  generally  accepted 
 accounƟng  pracƟces  and  controls,  which  will  properly  reflect  all  direct  and  indirect 
 costs  and  funds  expended  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement.  The  Contractor 
 shall  make  these  records  available  at  reasonable  Ɵmes  upon  request  to  State  and 
 Federal personnel, and other persons authorized by the County. 

 iii.  The  Contractor  agrees  to  collect  financial  staƟsƟcs  on  a  regular  basis  and  to  make 
 financial reports at Ɵmes in the form prescribed by the County. 

 I.  Program  Records,  Controls,  Reports,  and  Monitoring  Procedures:  The  Contractor  agrees 
 to  maintain  program  records  including  staƟsƟcal  records,  and  to  provide  program 
 records  to  the  County  at  Ɵmes  and  in  the  form  prescribed  by  the  County.  The  Contractor 
 agrees  to  establish  and  exercise  such  controls  as  are  necessary  to  assure  full  compliance 
 with  the  program  and  faciliƟes  review  (including  meeƟngs  with  consumers,  reviews  of 
 service  records,  review  of  policy  and  procedures,  review  of  staffing  raƟos  and  job 
 descripƟons,  and  meeƟngs  with  any  staff  directly  of  indirectly  involved  in  the  provision 
 of  services)  may  be  conducted  at  any  reasonable  Ɵme  by  State  and  Federal  personnel 
 and other persons authorized by the County. 

 J.  RetenƟon  of  Records:  The  Contractor  agrees  to  retain  all  books,  records,  and  other 
 documents  relevant  to  this  Agreement  for  three  (3)  years  aŌer  final  payment  is  made 

 4 



 under  the  Agreement  or  all  pending  maƩers  are  closed,  whichever  is  later.  If  liƟgaƟon  or 
 other  acƟon  involving  the  Agreement  is  started  before  the  end  of  the  three  (3)  year 
 period,  the  records  shall  be  retained  unƟl  all  issues  arising  out  of  the  acƟon  are  resolved 
 or unƟl the end of the three (3) year period, whichever is later. 

 K.  Insurance: 

 i.  Contractor  agrees  that  it  is  an  independent  contractor  and  not  an  agent  of  the 
 County.  The  Contractor  and  the  County  shall  not  be  responsible  for  any  legal  liability, 
 loss,  malpracƟce,  damages,  costs  and  expenses  arising  in  favor  of  any  person  on 
 account  of  personal  injuries,  death  or  property  loss  or  damage  occurring,  growing 
 out  of,  incident  to  or  resulƟng  directly  or  indirectly  from  the  acts  or  omissions  of  the 
 other party under this Agreement. 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  obtain,  and  at  all  Ɵmes  keep  in  effect,  comprehensive  liability 
 insurance  and  property  damage  insurance  covering  acƟviƟes,  operaƟons,  and 
 omissions  of  the  Contractor,  all  subcontractors,  and  all  named  addiƟonal  insureds. 
 Contractor  may  saƟsfy  this  requirement  for  general  liability  insurance  in  any  manner 
 allowed  by  ORS  30.282.  Such  liability  insurance,  whatever  the  form,  shall  be  in  an 
 amount  not  less  than  one  million  dollars  ($1,000,000)  with  provision  for  increased 
 coverage  as  such  limits  are  increased  by  legislaƟve  acƟon.  In  the  event  of  unilateral 
 cancellaƟon  or  restricƟon  by  the  insurance  company  of  the  Contractor's  insurance 
 policy  referred  to  in  this  paragraph,  the  Contractor  shall  immediately  noƟfy  the 
 County verbally and in wriƟng. 

 iii.  As  evidence  of  the  insurance  coverage  required  by  this  Agreement,  and  prior  to  the 
 execuƟon  of  this  Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  furnish  a  CerƟficate  of  Insurance  to 
 Polk  County,  to  Polk  County  Health  Services,  182  SW  Academy  Street,  Suite  204, 
 Dallas,  Oregon  97338.  The  CerƟficate  form,  to  be  completed  by  the  Contractor's 
 insurer,  naming  Polk  County  as  addiƟonal  insured,  will  be  maintained  in  the  County's 
 file of this Agreement. 

 iv.  There  shall  not  be  any  cancellaƟon,  material  changes  or  failure  to  renew  such 
 insurance policy (policies) without thirty (30) days’ prior noƟce to the County. 

 L.  SubcontracƟng:  Unless  subcontracƟng  is  authorized  elsewhere  in  the  Agree ment,  the 
 Contractor  shall  not  enter  into  any  subcontracts  for  any  of  the  work  contemplated  under 
 this  Agreement  without  obtaining  prior  wriƩen  approval  from  the  County,  which 
 approval  shall  be  aƩached  to  the  original  Agreement.  Approval  by  the  County  of  a 
 subcontract  shall  not  result  in  any  obligaƟons  of  the  County  in  addiƟon  to  the  agreed 
 rates  of  payment  and  total  consideraƟon.  Any  subcontracts  which  the  County  may 

 5 



 authorize  shall  contain  all  requirements  of  this  Agreement,  and  the  Contractor  shall  be 
 responsible  for  the  performance  of  the  subcontractor.  Contractor  may  subcon tract 
 medical  invesƟgator's  duƟes  so  long  as  the  sub contractor  possesses  medical 
 qualificaƟons equivalent to those of the Contractor. 

 M.  Re-negoƟaƟon  or  ModificaƟon:  Any  alteraƟons,  variaƟons,  modificaƟons  to  or  waivers 
 of  provisions  of  this  Agreement  shall  be  valid  only  when  they  have  been  reduced  to 
 wriƟng,  duly  signed,  and  approved  by  the  Contractor  and  the  County  and  aƩached  to 
 the original of this Agreement. 

 N.  Excuses  for  Nonperformance:  Neither  party  to  this  Agreement  shall  be  held  responsible 
 for  delay  or  failure  in  performance  of  the  acƟviƟes  required  herein  when  such  delay  or 
 failure  is  due  to  causes  beyond  the  control  and  without  the  fault  or  negligence  of  the 
 party.  Such  causes  may  include,  but  are  not  restricted  to,  fire,  flood,  epidemic,  strikes, 
 acts  of  God  or  the  public  enemy,  unusually  severe  weather,  legal  acts  of  public 
 authoriƟes,  or  delays  or  defaults  caused  by  public  carriers,  which  cannot  reasonably  be 
 forecast  or  provided  against.  Either  party  may  terminate  the  Agreement  aŌer 
 reasonably  determining  that  such  delay  or  failure  will  prevent  conƟnued  performance  of 
 the  Agreement,  and  aŌer  giving  wriƩen  noƟce  to  the  other  party  of  the  cause,  its  effect 
 on  Agreement  performance  and  effec Ɵve  date  of  terminaƟon.  If  the  Agreement  is  so 
 terminated,  the  obligaƟon  of  the  County  shall  be  limited  to  payment  for  services 
 provided in accordance with the Agreement prior to the date of terminaƟon. 

 O.  Remedies:  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  or  perform  any  of  the  other 
 requirements  under  the  Contract,  and  such  failure  is  not  excused  under  the  paragraph 
 Ɵtled  "Excuses  for  Nonperformance",  the  County,  aŌer  giving  the  Contractor  wriƩen 
 noƟce  of  such  failure,  may  withhold  part  or  all  of  the  Contractor's  payment  for  the 
 services  unƟl  such  failure  is  corrected.  If  the  Contractor  does  not  correct  such  failure 
 within  a  reasonable  Ɵme  allowed  by  the  County,  the  County  may  terminate  the 
 Agreement  in  accordance  with  the  clause  Ɵtled  "TerminaƟon."  However,  this  paragraph, 
 and  any  acƟons  taken  or  not  taken  under  it,  shall  not  affect  the  County's  rights  under  the 
 "TerminaƟon" clause. 

 P.  TerminaƟon:  This  Agreement  may  be  terminated  by  mutual  consent  of  both  parƟes  or 
 unilaterally  by  both  parƟes  at  any  Ɵme  upon  thirty  (30)  days’  noƟce  to  the  other  party 
 in  wriƟng  and  delivered  personally  or  by  CerƟfied  Mail.  The  County  may  also  unilaterally 
 terminate  this  Agreement  effecƟve  upon  delivery  of  wriƩen  noƟce  to  the  Contrac tor,  or 
 at  such  later  date  as  may  be  established  by  the  County,  under  any  of  the  following 
 condiƟons: 

 6 



 i.  If  funds,  specifically  authorized  by  LegislaƟve  acts,  do  not  become  available  in 
 amounts  sufficient  to  allow  for  purchase  of  the  stated  quanƟty  of  services.  When 
 possible  and  when  agreed  upon  by  the  parƟes,  the  Agreement  may  be  modified  in 
 accordance  with  the  paragraph  enƟtled  “Re-negoƟaƟon  or  ModificaƟon”  to 
 accommodate a reducƟon in funds. 

 ii.  If  Federal  or  State  laws,  regulaƟons  or  guidelines  are  modified  or  changed  in  such  a 
 way  that  the  services  are  no  longer  allowable  or  appropriate  for  purchase  under  this 
 Agreement  or  no  longer  qualify  for  the  funding  proposed  for  payments  authorized  by 
 this Agreement. 

 iii.  If  any  license  or  cerƟficate  required  by  law  or  regulaƟon  to  be  held  by  the  Contractor 
 to  provide  the  services  required  by  this  Agreement  is  for  any  reason  denied,  revoked, 
 not  renewed,  or  changed  in  such  a  way  that  the  Contractor  no  longer  meets 
 requirements for such license or cerƟficate. 

 iv.  TerminaƟon  under  this  clause  shall  be  without  prejudice  to  any  obligaƟons  or 
 liabiliƟes  of  either  party  already  reasonably  incurred  prior  to  such  terminaƟon, 
 except  that  the  Contractor  shall  be  solely  responsible  for  its  obligaƟons  or  liabiliƟes 
 aŌer  the  terminaƟon  date,  which  obligaƟons  or  liabiliƟes  result  from  the 
 Contractor's  failure  to  provide  for  terminaƟon  of,  or  exercises  the  right  to  terminate, 
 its  commitments.  No  right  of  acƟon  or  damages  shall  accrue  to  the  benefit  of  the 
 Contractor if the Agreement is terminated under this clause. 

 v.  The  County,  by  wriƩen  noƟce  of  default  (including  breach  of  contract)  to  the 
 Contractor, may terminate this Agreement: 

 a.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  provide  the  services  called  for  by  this  Agreement  within 
 the Ɵme speci fied herein or any extension thereof granted by the County; or 

 b.  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  perform  any  of  the  other  requirements  of  this 
 Agreement; or 

 c.  If  the  Contractor  so  fails  to  perform  the  work  required  in  the  Agreement  that 
 performance  of  this  Agreement  in  accordance  with  its  terms  is  endan gered,  and 
 aŌer  receipt  of  wriƩen  noƟce  from  the  County  specifying  such  failure,  the 
 Contractor  fails  to  correct  such  failure  within  ten  (10)  days  or  such  longer  period 
 as the County may authorize. 

 vi.  If  the  Agreement  is  terminated  under  this  clause,  the  County's  obligaƟons  shall  be 
 limited  to  payment  for  services  provided  in  accordance  with  the  Agreement  prior  to 

 7 



 the  date  of  terminaƟon,  less  any  damages  suffered  by  the  County.  The  rights  and 
 remedies  of  the  County  in  this  clause  related  to  defaults  (including  breach  of 
 contract)  by  the  Contractor  shall  not  be  exclusive  and  are  in  addiƟon  to  any  other 
 rights and remedies provided to the County by law or under this Agreement. 

 Q.  Hold  Harmless:  Except  for  claims  arising  in  whole  from  the  negligence  of  County,  its 
 employees  or  its  agents,  Contractor  agrees  to  indemnify  and  hold  County  harmless  from 
 and  against  all  acƟons,  suits,  claims  and  demands  arising  out  of  Contractor’s 
 performance  under  this  Contract  and  agrees  to  defend  County  in  such  acƟons,  suits, 
 claims and demands. 

 R.  Waiver  of  Default:  Waiver  of  any  default  shall  not  be  deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any 
 subsequent  default.  Waiver  of  breach  of  any  provision  of  the  Agreement  shall  not  be 
 deemed  to  be  a  waiver  of  any  other  or  subsequent  breach  and  shall  not  be  construed  to 
 be  a  modificaƟon  of  the  terms  of  the  Agreement  unless  stated  to  be  such  in  wriƟng, 
 signed  by  an  authorized  representaƟve  of  the  County,  and  aƩached  to  the  original 
 Agreement in accordance with the paragraph enƟtled "Re-negoƟaƟon or ModificaƟon". 

 S.  Severability:  The  parƟes  agree  that  if  any  term  or  provision  of  this  Agreement  is  declared 
 by  a  court  of  competent  jurisdicƟon  to  be  illegal  or  in  conflict  with  any  law,  the  validity  of 
 the  remaining  terms  and  provisions  shall  not  be  affected,  and  the  rights  and  obligaƟons 
 of  the  parƟes  shall  be  construed  and  enforced  as  if  the  Agreement  did  not  contain  the 
 parƟcular term or provision held to be invalid. 

 T.  Fees  Prohibited:  The  Contractor  will  not  impose  or  demand  any  fees  from  any  person  or 
 agency  for  services  provided  and  paid  for  under  this  Agreement,  unless  the  fees  have 
 been approved in advance by the County in wriƟng. 

 U.  Non-DiscriminaƟon:  The  Contractor  acknowledges  that  they  are  an  equal  opportunity 
 employer  and  no  person  shall  be  denied  services  or  discrimi nated  against  on  the  basis  of 
 race,  color,  religion,  sex,  sexual  orientaƟon,  naƟonal  origin,  marital  status  or  age,  and 
 there  shall  be  no  discriminaƟon  in  the  selecƟon,  compensaƟon  or  the  employ ment 
 pracƟces with respect to personnel coming under the auspices of the Contractor. 

 V.  Assignment  of  Agreement:  The  Contractor  shall  not  assign  or  transfer  its  interest  in  this 
 Agreement  without  prior  wriƩen  approval  of  the  County,  which  shall  be  aƩached  to  the 
 original  Agreement.  Any  such  assignment,  if  approved,  is  subject  to  such  condiƟons  and 
 provisions,  as  the  County  may  deem  necessary.  No  approval  by  the  County  of  any 
 assignment  or  transfer  of  interest  shall  be  deemed  to  create  any  obligaƟon  of  the  county 
 in addiƟon to the agreed rates of payment and total Agreement consideraƟon. 

 8 



 W.  Funds  Authorized  and  Available:  The  County  cerƟfies  that  at  the  Ɵme  of  signing  this 
 Agree ment,  sufficient  funds  are  authorized  and  available,  or  are  anƟcipated  to  be 
 available,  for  expenditure  to  finance  costs  of  this  Agreement  within  the  County's  current 
 appropri aƟon or limitaƟon. 

 X.  Recovery  of  Overpayments:  If  billings  under  this  Agreement,  or  under  any  Agreement 
 between  the  Contractor  and  the  County,  result  in  payments  to  the  Contractor  for  which 
 the  Contractor  is  not  enƟtled  under  the  terms  of  such  Agreement,  the  County,  aŌer 
 giving  wriƩen  noƟficaƟon  to  the  Contractor,  may  withhold  from  payments  due  to  the 
 Contractor  under  this  Agreement  such  amounts,  over  such  periods  of  Ɵme,  as  are 
 necessary to recover the amount of the overpayment. 

 Y.  Criminal  History  Records  Checks:  Contractor  agrees  to  authorize  a  review  of  state  and 
 federal  records  by  Polk  County  as  a  qualified  enƟty,  to  determine  the  nature  of  any 
 criminal  acƟvity  the  Contractor  may  have  been  involved  in  accordance  with  OAR 
 943-007-001  for  purposes  described  in  OAR  407-007-0400.  No  work  will  be  assigned  to 
 Contractor  unƟl  a  Criminal  History  Check  is  completed  and  verified  by  the  qualified 
 enƟty.  Contractor  shall  noƟfy  Polk  County  within  five  days  of  being  arrested,  charged,  or 
 convicted of any crime. 

 SECTION IV:  CLAUSES REQUIRED BY OREGON LAW FOR PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS 

 A.  Payment  of  Subcontractors,  Industrial  Accident  Fund  ContribuƟons,  Liens  and 
 Withholding Taxes: 

 1.  Contractor  shall  make  payment  promptly,  as  due,  to  all  persons  supplying  to  such 
 contractor  labor  or  material  for  the  prosecuƟon  of  the  work  provided  for  in  this 
 contract. 

 2.  Contractor  shall  pay  all  contribuƟons  or  amounts  due  the  Industrial  Accident  Fund 
 from such contractor or subcontractor incurred in the performance of the contract. 

 3.  Contractor  shall  not  permit  any  lien  or  claim  to  be  filed  or  prosecuted  against  the 
 state,  county,  school  district,  municipality,  Municipal  CorporaƟon  or  subdivisions 
 thereof, on account of any labor or material furnished. 

 4.  Contractor  shall  pay  to  the  Department  of  Revenue  all  sums  withheld  from 
 employees pursuant to ORS 316.167. 

 B.  Payment  of  Claims  by  County  :  If  Contractor  fails,  neglects  or  refuses  to  make  prompt 
 payment  of  any  claim  for  labor  or  services  furnished  to  the  contractor  or  a  subcontractor 
 by  any  person  in  connecƟon  with  the  public  contract  as  such  claim  becomes  due,  the 

 9 



 proper  officer  or  officers  represenƟng  Polk  County  may  pay  such  claim  to  the  person 
 furnishing  the  labor  or  services  and  charge  the  amount  of  payment  against  funds  due  or 
 to  become  due  the  Contractor  by  reason  of  this  contract.  Payment  of  a  claim  in  this 
 manner  shall  not  relieve  the  contractor  or  contractor’s  surety  from  obligaƟon  with 
 respect to any unpaid claims. 

 C.  Hours  of  Labor:  All  laborers  providing  contract  services  shall  be  paid  at  least  Ɵme  and  a 
 half  for  all  overƟme  worked  in  excess  of  40  hours  in  any  one  week,  except  for  individuals 
 under  these  contracts  who  are  excluded  under  ORS  653.010  to  653.261  or  under  29  USC 
 secƟon 201 to 209 from receiving overƟme. 

 D.  Payment  for  Medical  Care:  Contractor  shall  promptly,  as  due,  make  payment  to  any 
 person,  co-partnership,  associaƟon  or  corporaƟon,  furnishing  medical,  surgical  and 
 hospital  care  or  other  needed  care  and  aƩenƟon,  incident  to  sickness  or  injury,  to  the 
 employees  for  such  Contractor,  of  all  sums  which  the  Contractor  agrees  to  pay  for  such 
 services  and  all  moneys  and  sums  which  the  contractor  collected  or  deducted  from  the 
 wages  of  employees  pursuant  to  any  law,  contract  or  agreement  for  the  purpose  of 
 providing or paying such service. 

 E.  Providing  Workers’  CompensaƟon  Insurance:  All  employers  working  under  this  contract 
 are subject employers who will comply with ORS 656.017. 

 F.  Health  Care  Benefits  for  Employees:  The  Contractor  shall  provide  health  care  benefits  to 
 all  employees  who  are  performing  services  previously  performed  by  public  employees  if 
 the  condiƟons  specified  in  ORS  653.767  require  such  payment.  Benefits  must  equal  or 
 exceed  those  benefits  specified  in  ORS  279.315(3).  This  clause  does  not  apply  to 
 contracts for temporary, non-ongoing or nonrecurring contracts. 

 G.  Americans  with  DisabiliƟes  Act  Compliance:  Contractor  agrees  that  Contractor  will 
 comply  and  does  comply  with  all  relevant  provisions  of  the  Americans  with  DisabiliƟes 
 Act, to the extent required by the Act. 

 10 



 SIGNATURE PAGE 

 BY SIGNATURE BELOW, both parƟes agree to and accept all terms and condiƟons of this 
 Agreement between County and Contractor along with the following: 

 ●  Exhibit A: Business Associate Agreement
 ●  Exhibit B: Statement of Work

 CONTRACTOR 

 Signature  Date 
 Title: 

 COUNTY 

 Chair  Date 
 Board of Commissioners 

 APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 Morgan Smith  Date 
 County Counsel 

 11 



 EXHIBIT A: 
 BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 

 Between 
 POLK COUNTY  and  ERIN DANNECKER, LLC 

 1.  DEFINITIONS: 

 Except  as  otherwise  defined  in  this  Business  Associate  Agreement  (BA  Agreement),  any 
 and  all  italicized  terms  herein  shall  have  the  same  definiƟon  as  those  in  the  HIPAA 
 Privacy  Rule.  1  Henceforth,  Polk  County,  a  poliƟcal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon, 
 shall  be  referred  as  “COUNTY”  and  ERIN  DANNECKER,  LLC,  shall  be  referred  to  as 
 “CONTRACTOR”. 

 2.  OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF CONTRACTOR: 

 A.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  not  use  or  disclose  Protected  Health  Informa on  other  than 
 as permiƩed or required by this BA Agreement or as permiƩed or required by law. 

 B.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  use  appropriate  safeguards  to  prevent  use  or  disclosure  of 
 Protected Health InformaƟon other than as provided for by this BA Agreement. 

 C.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  miƟgate,  to  the  extent  pracƟcable,  any  harmful  effect  that  is 
 known  to  CONTRACTOR  of  a  use  or  disclosure  of  Protected  Health  InformaƟon  by 
 CONTRACTOR in violaƟon of the requirements of this BA Agreement. 

 D.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  report  to  the  COUNTY  any  use  or  disclosure  of  the  Protected 
 Health  InformaƟon  not  provided  for  by  this  BA  Agreement  of  which  it  becomes 
 aware. 

 E.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  ensure  that  any  agent,  including  a  subcontractor,  to  whom  it 
 provides  Protected  Health  InformaƟon  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by, 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  agrees  to  the  same  restricƟons  and 
 condiƟons  that  apply  through  this  BA  Agreement  to  CONTRACTOR  with  respect  to 
 such informaƟon. 

 1  The use and disclosure of protected health informa on in performance of Business Associate func ons is 
 governed by the Standards for Privacy of Individually Iden fiable Health Informa on (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164), 
 referred to as the Privacy Rule, which were issued by the United States Department of Health and Human Services 
 pursuant to Public Law 104-191, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA). The use 
 and disclosure of protected health informa on is also governed by laws of the State of Oregon and by other federal 
 laws. 

 12 



 F.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  access, 
 at  the  request  of  the  COUNTY,  and  in  the  Ɵme  and  manner  necessary  for  reasonable 
 compliance,  to  Protected  Health  InformaƟon  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  to  the 
 COUNTY  or,  as  directed  by  the  COUNTY,  to  an  Individual  in  order  to  meet  the 
 requirements under 45 CFR § 164.524. 

 G.  In  the  event  that  it  is  found  to  be  applicable,  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  any 
 amendment(s)  to  Protected  Health  InformaƟon  in  a  Designated  Record  Set  that  the 
 COUNTY  directs  or  agrees  to  pursuant  to  45  CFR  §  164.526  at  the  request  of 
 CONTRACTOR,  or  an  Individual,  and  in  the  Ɵme  and  manner  necessary  for 
 reasonable compliance. 

 H.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  make  internal  pracƟces,  books,  and  records,  including 
 policies  and  procedures  and  Protected  Health  InformaƟon,  relaƟng  to  the  use  and 
 disclosure  of  Protected  Health  InformaƟon  received  from,  or  created  or  received  by 
 CONTRACTOR  on  behalf  of  the  COUNTY  available  to  the  COUNTY  or  to  the  Secretary 
 of  the  Department  of  Health  and  Human  Services  ,  in  a  Ɵme  and  manner  agreed 
 between  the  COUNTY  and  CONTRACTOR  or  designated  by  the  Secretary,  for 
 purposes  of  the  Secretary  determining  the  COUNTY’S  compliance  with  the  Privacy 
 Rule. 

 I.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  document  such  disclosures  of  Protected  Health  InformaƟon 
 and  informaƟon  related  to  such  disclosures  as  would  be  required  for  the  COUNTY  to 
 respond  to  a  request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accounƟng  of  disclosures  of  Protected 
 Health InformaƟon in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 J.  CONTRACTOR  agrees  to  provide  to  the  COUNTY  or  an  Individual,  in  the  Ɵme  and 
 manner  necessary  for  reasonable  compliance,  informaƟon  collected  in  accordance 
 with  secƟon  2.A  of  this  BA  Agreement,  to  permit  the  COUNTY  to  respond  to  a 
 request  by  an  Individual  for  an  accounƟng  of  disclosures  of  Protected  Health 
 InformaƟon in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528. 

 3.  PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY CONTRACTOR: Except as otherwise limited in 
 this BA Agreement, CONTRACTOR may use or disclose Protected Health InformaƟon to 
 perform certain health plan funcƟons for or on behalf of the COUNTY as specified in the 
 Polk County Agreement and in this BA Agreement provided that such use or disclosure 
 would not violate the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY or the minimum necessary 
 policies and procedures of the COUNTY. 

 4.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE COUNTY: 

 13 



 A.  The COUNTY shall noƟfy CONTRACTOR of any limitaƟon(s) in the  No ce of Privacy 
 Prac ces  of the COUNTY in accordance with 45 CFR  § 164.520, to the extent that 
 such limitaƟon may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected Health 
 InformaƟon. 

 B.  The COUNTY shall noƟfy CONTRACTOR of any changes in, or revocaƟon of, 
 permission by Individual to use or disclose Protected Health InformaƟon, to the 
 extent that such changes may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or disclosure of Protected 
 Health InformaƟon. 

 C.  The COUNTY shall noƟfy CONTRACTOR of any restricƟon to the use or disclosure of 
 Protected Health InformaƟon that the COUNTY has agreed to in accordance with 45 
 CFR § 164.522, to the extent that such restricƟon may affect CONTRACTOR’S use or 
 disclosure of Protected Health InformaƟon. 

 5.  PERMISSIBLE REQUESTS BY THE COUNTY: The COUNTY shall not request CONTRACTOR to 
 use or disclose Protected Health InformaƟon in any manner that would not be 
 permissible under the Privacy Rule if done by the COUNTY except if such use or 
 disclosure is permiƩed under the Agreement between the COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 

 6.  TERM AND TERMINATION: 

 A.  Term  . This BA Agreement shall be effecƟve as of July  01, 2023, and shall terminate 
 when all of the Protected Health InformaƟon provided by the COUNTY to 
 CONTRACTOR, or created or received by CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY, is 
 destroyed or returned to the COUNTY, or, if it is infeasible to return or destroy 
 Protected Health InformaƟon, protecƟons are extended to such informaƟon, in 
 accordance with the terminaƟon provisions in this SecƟon. 

 B.  TerminaƟon for Cause  . Upon the COUNTY’S knowledge  of a material breach by 
 CONTRACTOR, the COUNTY shall either: 

 i.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to cure the breach without the 
 intervenƟon of the COUNTY within the Ɵmeline specified in SecƟon III (P) of the 
 Polk County Agreement; or 

 ii.  Provide an opportunity for CONTRACTOR to terminate this BA Agreement and 
 the Polk County Agreement within the Ɵmeline specified in SecƟon III of the Polk 
 County Agreement. At the direcƟon of its Board of Directors, the COUNTY may 
 terminate this BA Agreement and the Polk County Agreement as permiƩed in 

 14 



 SecƟon III of the Polk County Agreement if CONTRACTOR has not cured the 
 breach upon conclusion of the technical assistance and correcƟve acƟon 
 described in paragraph (i.) of this secƟon; or 

 iii.  If neither terminaƟon nor cure is feasible, the COUNTY shall report the violaƟon 
 to the Secretary. 

 C.  Effect of TerminaƟon  . 

 i.  Except as provided in paragraph (ii.) of this secƟon, upon terminaƟon of this BA 
 Agreement, for any reason, CONTRACTOR shall return or destroy all Protected 
 Health InformaƟon received from the COUNTY, or created or received by 
 CONTRACTOR on behalf of the COUNTY. This provision shall apply to Protected 
 Health InformaƟon that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of 
 CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall retain no copies of the Protected Health 
 InformaƟon. 

 ii.  In the event that CONTRACTOR determines that returning or destroying the 
 Protected Health InformaƟon is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall provide to the 
 COUNTY wriƩen noƟficaƟon of the condiƟons that make return or destrucƟon 
 infeasible. Upon wriƩen acknowledgement by the COUNTY that the return or 
 destrucƟon of Protected Health InformaƟon is infeasible, CONTRACTOR shall 
 extend the protecƟons of this BA Agreement to such Protected Health 
 InformaƟon and limit further uses and disclosures of such Protected Health 
 InformaƟon to those purposed that make the return or destrucƟon infeasible, for 
 so long as CONTRACTOR maintains such Protected Health InformaƟon. 

 7.  MISCELLANEOUS: 

 A.  Regulatory References  . References in this BA Agreement  to the Privacy Rule or any 
 secƟon of the Privacy Rule means the Privacy Rule or secƟon as in effect or as 
 amended. 

 B.  Amendment  . The COUNTY and CONTRACTOR agree to take  such acƟon as is 
 necessary to amend this BA Agreement from Ɵme to Ɵme as is necessary for the 
 COUNTY to comply with the requirement of the Privacy Rule and HIPAA. 

 C.  Survival  . The respecƟve rights and obligaƟons of  CONTRACTOR under SecƟon 6.C of 
 this BA Agreement shall survive the terminaƟon of this BA Agreement. 

 15 



 D.  InterpretaƟon  . Any ambiguity in this BA Agreement shall be resolved to permit the 
 COUNTY to comply with the Privacy Rule. In the event of any inconsistency between 
 the provisions of this BA Agreement and the mandatory provisions of the Privacy 
 Rule, the Privacy Rule shall control. Where laws in the State of Oregon or other 
 federal law is more stringent than the Privacy Rule, the more stringent Oregon or 
 federal law shall control. 

 8.  SECURITY RULE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT LANGUAGE: 

 A.  Background Requirement  : The COUNTY, in accordance  with § 164.306 and § 164.308 
 (b), may permit the CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic 
 Protected Health InformaƟon on the COUNTY’S behalf only if the COUNTY obtains 
 saƟsfactory assurances, in accordance with § 164.314(a) that the CONTRACTOR will 
 appropriately safeguard the informaƟon. The COUNTY must document the 
 saƟsfactory assurances through a wriƩen contract or other arrangement with the 
 CONTRACTOR. 

 B.  Part I. Security Assurances  : The CONTRACTOR will Implement  administraƟve, 
 physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the 
 confidenƟality, integrity, and availability of the electronic protected health 
 informaƟon that it creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of the 
 COUNTY as required by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 
 1996 and the requirements of Health Insurance Reform, the Security Standards 
 (45CFR Parts 160, 162 & 164); 

 i.  Ensure that any agent, including a SUBCONTRACTOR, to whom it provides such 
 informaƟon, agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards to 
 protect it. 

 ii.  Report to the COUNTY any security incident of which it becomes aware. 

 iii.  Authorize terminaƟon of the contract by the COUNTY, if the COUNTY determines 
 that the business associate has violated a material term of the contract. 

 C.  Part II.  Other arrangements:  When the COUNTY and the  CONTRACTOR are both 
 governmental enƟƟes, the COUNTY is in compliance with the requirements if: 

 i.  It enters into a memorandum of understanding with the CONTRACTOR that 
 contains terms that accomplish the objecƟves of Part I.; or 

 16 



 ii.  Other  law  (including  regulaƟons  adopted  by  the  COUNTY  or  the  CONTRACTOR) 
 contains  requirements  applicable  to  the  CONTRACTOR  that  accomplish  the 
 objecƟves of Part I. 

 D.  If the CONTRACTOR is required by law to perform a funcƟon or acƟvity on behalf of 
 the COUNTY or to provide a service described in the definiƟon of CONTRACTOR as 
 specified in § 160.103 of the regulaƟon to the COUNTY, the COUNTY may permit the 
 CONTRACTOR to create, receive, maintain, or transmit Electronic Protected Health 
 InformaƟon on its behalf to the extent necessary to comply with the legal mandate 
 without meeƟng the requirements of Part I., although the COUNTY will aƩempt in 
 good faith to obtain saƟsfactory assurances as required by Part I. (A), and will 
 document the aƩempt and the reasons that these assurances cannot be obtained, if 
 not obtained. 

 17 



 EXHIBIT B: 
 STATEMENT OF WORK 

 POLK  COUNTY,  a  poliƟcal  subdivision  of  the  State  of  Oregon  and,  ERIN  DANNECKER,  LLC, 
 hereinaŌer called “Contractor,” hereby agree to the following: 

 1.  STATEMENT OF SERVICES 

 A.  Contractor  agrees  to  work  within  scope,  training  and  experience  as  a  Licensed  Clinical 
 Social  Worker,  to  provide  services,  support  and  training  that  meets  the  needs  of  both 
 Contractor and County as evidenced by the Service AuthorizaƟon and AcƟvity form. 

 B.  Contractor  shall  perform  all  services  deemed  necessary  in  their  professional  opinion 
 based  upon  their  training,  educaƟon  and  experƟse  as  evidenced  in  the  applicaƟon 
 materials  and  other  professional  endorsements,  notwithstanding  any  limitaƟons  set 
 forth in this agreement. 

 C.  Contractor  shall  only  use  methods  or  techniques  in  which  the  Contractor  has 
 documented  training,  educaƟon  and  experƟse.  Contractor  will  ensure  services  provided 
 are  within  rules  and  guidelines  of  Oregon  Health  Authority,  Health  Services  Division: 
 Behavioral Health Services, Chapter 309-019. 

 2.  GENERAL INFORMATION 

 A.  Contractors  must  provide  primary  source  verificaƟon  of  credenƟals.  No  work  will  be 
 assigned  to  Contractors  who  render  direct  service  to  clients  or  paƟents  unƟl  credenƟals 
 have been validated for Medicaid claims. 

 B.  Annual  requirements  mandate  that  the  Contractor  will  submit  a  conflict  of  Interest 
 Statement.  Contractor  queries  of  the  OIG  and  EPLS  List  of  Excluded  Individuals/EnƟƟes 
 database  will  also  be  performed  annually.  Bases  for  exclusion  include  convicƟons  for 
 program-related  fraud  and  paƟent  abuse,  licensing  board  acƟons  and  default  on  Health 
 EducaƟon  Assistance  Loans.  It  is  the  expectaƟon  that  the  Contractor  will  maintain 
 credenƟaling  required  to  perform  job  duƟes  in  good  standing.  It  is  the  responsibility  of 
 the  Contractor  to  report  any  circumstances  that  would  jeopardize  this  standing  or  lead 
 to exclusionary status. Failure to do so may lead to contract terminaƟon  . 

 C.  Contractor  agrees  to  report  cases  of  suspected  Medicaid,  Medicare  fraud,  waste,  or 
 abuse  to  the  PCBH  Compliance  Officer  at  503-623-9289.  If  there  is  reason  to  believe 
 that  PCBH  cannot  respond  appropriately  to  a  suspected  case  of  fraud,  waste,  or  abuse, 
 or  if  the  case  involves  PCBH,  then  Contractor  agrees  to  make  a  report  to  Ethicspoint  at 
 888-265-4068. 

 18 



 D.  County  may  conduct  performance  reviews  annually  to  assess  Contractor’s  performance 
 as it relates to the services required under this contract. 

 E.  Absences: 

 i.  Contractor  shall  noƟfy  the  County  at  least  five  (5)  business  days  in  advance  for  all 
 anƟcipated extended absences (i.e. vacaƟons, professional meeƟngs, etc.). 

 ii.  Contractor  shall  noƟfy  the  County  of  unplanned  absences  (ie:  illness  or  other 
 unforeseen events) at least one hour prior to expected work Ɵme. 

 F.  Contractor  agrees  to  provide  10  business  day  noƟce  of  changes  to  their  clinic  schedule 
 availability. 

 G.  All  client  records  are  considered  the  property  of  the  County  and  shall  not  be  retained  by 
 the  Contractor.  Contractor  shall  have  all  service  notes  and  documentaƟon  completed 
 within  three  business  days  of  service  encounter.  Contractor  shall  maintain  client/paƟent 
 records and documentaƟon within CMS guidelines. 

 H.  Contractor  may  elect  to  use  the  electronic  health  record  system  supported  by  the 
 County.  Contractor  shall  provide  County  with  a  CerƟficate  of  Electronic  Health  Record 
 Technology  (CEHRT)  when  Contractor  elects  to  use  a  system  that  is  not  supported  by  the 
 County or Oregon Health Authority. 

 I.  Documents  that  are  required  for  billing  shall  be  submiƩed  three  days  aŌer  the  close  of 
 business  on  the  last  weekday  of  each  month.  DocumentaƟon  found  to  be  out  of 
 compliance  with  County  and/or  State  guidelines  shall  be  corrected  within  ten  (10) 
 business days. 

 J.  Billable  service  notes  shall  meet  documentaƟon  standards  in  accordance  with  OAR 
 309-019-0135 through 309-019-0145. 

 K.  Contractor  is  required  to  receive  two  hours  of  clinical  supervision  quarterly  ,  which  shall 
 include  at  least  one  hour  of  individual  face-to-face  contact  either  in  person  or  via 
 two-way  audio  visual  conferencing  from  a  qualified  clinical  supervisor.  Contractor  will  be 
 required  to  provide  documentaƟon  of  supervision  received,  if  obtained  by  a  Clinical 
 Supervisor Outside of County. Failure to do so may lead to contract terminaƟon. 

 3.  AUTHORIZED SERVICES 

 A.  County  will  only  pay  for  service  and  acƟviƟes  that  have  been  pre  authorized  and  agreed 
 upon in wriƟng by both parƟes on a Service and AcƟvity AuthorizaƟon Form. 

 19 



 B.  County  will  authorize  services  based  on  Level  of  Care  as  outlined  in  the  Individual 
 Service  Plan.  All  services  submiƩed  for  payment  must  be  supported  by  the  Individual 
 Service Plan and verified by County to be compliant with applicable regulaƟons. 

 4.  RATES AND METHOD OF PAY 

 A.  County  shall  reimburse  the  Contractor  at  the  rate  of  $130.00  per  hour  for  client  direct 
 Billable  Services  and  $95  per  hour  for  Clinic  Hour  Service  availability,  as  well  as  for  Other 
 Service  AcƟvity,  as  outlined  in  the  Service  AcƟvity  AuthorizaƟon  form  with  services  paid 
 on a per occurrence basis to the nearest quarter hour upon receipt of an invoice. 

 B.  County  will  have  no  legal  obligaƟon  to  pay  for  any  unauthorized  services,  including 
 unauthorized expenditures. 

 20 



RIGHT OF WAY DEDICATION and
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

KNOWALL BY THESE PRESENTS that Weyerhaeuser Timber Holdings,Inc., a Delaware

corporation ("GRANTOR"), does hereby bargain, sell, convey, transfer, and dedicate, to Polk

County, a political subdivision of the State of Oregon, ("GRANTEE"), for use as public roads

forever the real property described and shown in Exhibit "A" attached and made part of this

document.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the above described and granted premises unto GRANTEE, its

successors and assigns forever.

GRANTOR hereby covenants with the said GRANTEE that GRANTOR will forever warrant and

defend the title to said lands against all lawful claim of all persons claiming by, through or under

the said GRANTOR, but against none other.

GRANTOR does also hereby grant unto GRANTEE a temporary construction easement and right-

of-way upon, across, and under so much of the aforesaid land as described and shown in Exhibit
.,Arr.

It being understood that said temporary easement is only for construction activities required for

reconstruction of the roadway granted by this easement for the period of three (3) years from the

date of GRANTOR signature hereon.

Uses undertaken by the GRANTOR shall not be inconsistent or interfere with the use of the subject

easement area by the GRANTEE. No buitding or utility shall be placed upon, under, or within the

property subject to the temporary construction easement during the term thereof, however, without

the written permission of the GRANTEE.

Upon completion of the construction, the GRANTEE shall restore the surface of the property to

its original condition and shall indemnify and hold the GRANTOR harmless against any and all

loss, cost, or damage arising out of the exercise of the rights granted herein.

The true consideration of this conveyance is for other value given, the receipt of which is hereby

acknowledged by GRANTOR.

IN ss WHEREOF, We have hereunto set our hand and seal this laf day of
2023

Weyerhaeuser Timber Holdings, Inc., a

Delaware corporation

llll

Name
Title:

1l
1

ttrt

l^- ?1 r

Page | 1



STATE OF WASHINGTON

COUNTY OF KING
SS

)

)
)

On this (.1-
whose identity
to be the {ru
corporation,, artd

Y FOR WASHINGTON

My Commission Expires:

POLK COUNTY ACCEPTANCE:

Board of Commissioners

Approved as to form:

County Counsel

dav of \rdu ,2023
i. p"rrilu$-koown to
tesae'x&

, personally appeared before me
me ( or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory

for the Weyerhaeuser Timber Holdings, Inc, a Delaware

that he/she executed the same.

Date

Date

Page l2



Exhibit rrA"

Parcel OO2-O1

A tract of land lying in the Southwest Quafter of Section t7, Township 08 South,
Range 06 West, of the Willamette Meridian, Polk County, Oregon and being a
portion of the tract of land conveyed to Weyerhaeuser Timber Holdings, Inc., a
Delaware corporation by Special Warranty Deed, recorded under Auditor's File
Number 2022-009411, on August L5,2022, records of Polk County, Oregon;
Said dedication being a strip of land along the northern right of way of Black Rock
Road and being furthered described as follows:

Beginning at a calculated point on the Engineer's center line of Black Rock Road,
said point lying on the section line between Sections 17 & 18, Township 08 South,
Range 06 West, Willamette Meridian and being Engineer's centerline Station
L3+94.77. Said point being N 02"08'01" E, a distance of 409.93 feet from the
Southwest section corner of Sections L7, Township 08 South, Range 06 West,
Willamette Meridian;

Thence N 02008'0L" E a distance of 31.16 feet to a calculated point of intersection
of the section line between Sections 17 & 18, Township 08 South, Range 06 West,
Willamette Meridian and the northern right of way boundary of Black Rock Road, as
legalized by the Polk County board of Commissioners Order 19-06 and depicted by
CS16421; Said point being 30.10 feet left of Engineer's centerline Station 13+86.71
and being the True Point of Beginning;

Thence, N 02008'01" E, a distance of 15.43 feet, to a calculated point 45.00 feet
left of Engineer's centerline Station t3+82.72;

Thence, leaving said section line between Sections 17 & 18, S 72052'58" E, a
distance of 252.28 feet, to a calculated point 45.00 feet left of Engineer's centerline
Station 16+35.00;

Thence, S 84o11'34" E, a distance of 25.50 feet, to a calculated point 50.00 feet
left of Engineer's centerline Station 16+60.00;

Thence, S 65045'28" E, a distance of 40.31 feet, to a calculated point 45.00 feet
left of Engineer's centerline Station 17+00.00;

Thence, S 72052'58" E, a distance of 135,05 feet, to a calculated point 45.00 feet
left of Engineer's centerline PC 18+35.05;

Thence, 82.39 feet, along a circular curve to the right, having a radius of 1045.00
feet, (Long Chord: S 70037'27" E,82.37') to a calculated point 45.00 feet left of
Engineer's centerline PT 19+ 13.89;

Thence S 68021'56" E, a distance of 277.33 feet, to a calculated point 45.00 feet
left of Engineer's centerline PC 2L+9L.22;

Page 1 of 9



Exhibit rrA"

Thence, L27.50 feet, along a circular curve to the left, having a radius of 255.00
feet, (Long Chord: S 82041'22" E, 126.18') to a calculated point 45.00 feet left of
Engineer's centerline PCC 23+4 t.22;

Thence, 83.10 feet, along a circular curve to the left, having a radius of 105.00
feet, (Long Chord: N 60018'51" E, 80,95') to a calculated point 45.00 feet left of
Engineer's centerline PT 24+59.94 ;

Thence, N 37038'30" E, a distance of 40.77 feet, to a calculated point 45.00 feet
left of Engineer's centerline PC 25+00.71;

Thence 2t9.75 feet, along a circular curve to the right, having a radius of 1,125.00
feet, (Long Chord: N 43o14'15" E, 2L9.40') to a calculated point 45.00 feet left of
Engineer's centerline PT 27 +LL.67 ;

Thence, N 41o24'08" E, a distance of 38.66 feet, to a calculated point 50.00 feet
left of Engineer's centerline Station 27+5A.OO;

Thence, N 48o50'00" E, a distance of 55.97 feet, to a calculated point 50.00 feet
left of Engineer's centerline PC 28+05,97;

Thence, 85.43 feet, along a circular curve to the left, having a radius of 1,850.00
feet, (Long Chord: N 47030'38" E,85.42') to a calculated point 50.00 feet left of
Engineer's centerline PT 28+93.7 ti

Thence, N 54001'37" E, a distance of 84.67 feet, to a calculated point 40.00 feet
left of Engineer's centerline Station 29+75.43; Said point lying on the property line
between Weyerhaeuser Timber Holdings, Inc. and Joe H. Bowling. Said propefty
line being a portion of the north/south sixteenth section line within the Southwest
Quarter of Section 17, Township 08 South, Range 06 West, Willamette Meridian;

Thence, along said property line between Weyerhaeuser Timber Holdings, Inc. and
Joe H. Bowling, S 02o13'09" W, a distance of L4.64 feet, to a calculated point 29.32
feet left of Engineer's centerline Station 29+65.75; Said point lying on said
northern right of way boundary of Black Rock Road;

Thence, along said northern right of way boundary of Black Rock Road, the
following ten courses:

1, S 58024'32W, a distance of 22.64 feet, to a calculated point 33.36 feet left
of Engineer's centerline Station 29+44.L4i

2. S 35047'21 W, a distance of 50.99 feet, to a calculated point 23,87 feet left
of Engineer's centerline Station 28+94.77;

3. S 47005'56 W, a distance of 260.87 feet, to a calculated point 20.85 feet left
of Engineer's centerline Station 26+34.30i

Page 2 of 9



Exhibit rrA"

4. 105.89 feet, along a circular curve to the left, having a radius of 595.00
feet, (Long Chord: S 42044'03 W, 105.79') to a calculated point 22.25 feet
left of Engineer's centerline Station 25+30.55;

5, S 38022'10 W, a distance of 58.41 feet, to a calculated point 22.57 feet left
of Engineer's centerline Station 24+72.76;

6. L85.42 feet, along a circular curve to the right, having a radius of 159'00
feet, (Long Chordl S 71046'42W,175.09') to a calculated point 25.87 feet
left of Engineer's centerline Station 22+6L.38;

7. N 74048'46 W, a distance of 95.45 feet, to a calculated point 22.62 feet left
of Engineer's centerline Station 21+59.90;

8. N 66056'41 W, a distance of 249.68 feet, to a calculated point 28.81 feet left
of Engineer's centerline Station 19+10.39;

9. N 72o19'10 W, a distance of L97.16 feet, to a calculated point 27.83 feet left
of Engineer's centerline Station L7+t5.34;

10. N 72"59'04 W, a distance of 190.58 feet, to a calculated point 27.50 feet left
of Engineer's centerline Station t5+24.76i

Thence, continuing along said northern right of way boundary of Black Rock Road,
N 71o48'11" W, a distance of 138.08 feet, to said True Point of Beginning;

Parcel 002-01 contains an area of 31,185 square feet or O.72 acres (Int.) more or
less.

Parcel OO2-O2

A tract of land lying in the Southwest Quarter of Section L7, Township 08 South,
Range 06 West, of the Willamette Meridian, Polk County, Oregon and being a

portion of the tract of land conveyed to Weyerhaeuser Timber Holdings, Inc., a

Delaware corporation by Special Warranty Deed, recorded under Auditor's File
Number 2022-009411, on August L5,2022, records of Polk County, Oregon; Said
dedication being a strip of land along the southern right of way of Black Rock Road
and being furthered described as follows:

Beginning at a calculated point on the Engineer's center line of Black Rock Road,
said point lying on the section line between Sections 17 & 18, Township 08 South,
Range 05 West, Willamette Meridian and being Engineer's centerline Station
L3+94.77; Said point being N 02008'01" E, a distance of 409.93 feet from the
Southwest section corner of Section 17, Township 08 South, Range 06 West,
Willamette Meridian;

Thence, along said section line between Sections 17 & 18, Township 08 South,
Range 06 West, Willamette Meridian, S 02008'01" W, a distance of 31.28 feet, to a
calculated point on southern right of way boundary of Black Rock Road, as legalized
by the Polk County board of Commissioners Order 19-06 and depicted by CS16421;
Said point being 30.22 feet right of Engineer's centerline Station 14+02.85 and
being the True Point of Beginning;

Page 3 of 9



Exhibit *A"

Thence continuing along said section line between Sections 17 & 18, S 02008'01" W

a distance of 10.13 feet to a calculated point 40.00 feet right of Engineer's
centerline Station L4+05.47 ;

Thence, leaving said section line between Sections 17 & 18, S 72052'58" E, a
distance of 209.53 feet, to a calculated point 40.00 feet right of Engineer's
centerline Station 16+15.00;

Thence, S 87"L7'43" E, a distance of 30.97 feet, to a calculated point on said
southern right of way boundary of Black Rock Road , 32.29 feet right of Engineer's
centerline Station 16+45.00;

Thence, along said southern right of way boundary of Black Rock Road,
N 72059'04" W, a distance of L20.75 feet, to a calculated point 32.50 feet right of
Engineer's centerline Station t5+24.25;

Thence, continuing along said southern right of way boundary of Black Rock Road,
N 71o48'11" W, a distance of L2L.42feet, to a calculated point 30.22 feet right of
Engineer's centerline Station 14+02.85 and lying at said True Point of Beginning.

Parcel OO2-O2 contains an area of 1,838 square feet or 0.04 acres (Int.) more or
less.

Parcel OO2-03

A tract of land lying in the Southwest Quarter of Section 17, Township 08 South,
Range 06 West, of the Willamette Meridian, Polk County, Oregon and being a

poftion of the tract of land conveyed to Weyerhaeuser Timber Holdings, Inc., a
Delaware corporation by Special Warranty Deed, recorded under Auditor's File
Number 2A22-009411, on August L5,2022, records of Polk County, Oregon; Said
dedication being a strip of land along the southern right of way of Black Rock Road

and being furthered described as follows:

Beginning at a calculated point on the southern right of way boundary of Black Rock
Road, as legalized by the Polk County board of Commissioners Order 19-06 and
depicted by CS1642L,33,54 feet right of Engineer's centerline Station 38+19.90
and being N 64003'53" W a distance of 731.73, from the South Quarter Corner of
Section 17, Township 8 South Range 6 West, Willamette Meridian and being the
True Point of Beginning;

Thence, leaving the southern right of way boundary of Black Rock Road, S
42oO5'47" E, d distance of Lt7.47 feet, to a calculated point 60.00 feet right of
Engineer's centerline Station 39+t4.46]

Thence, 26.81 feet, along a circular curve to the left, having a radius of 265.00
feet, (Long Chord: S 70048'50" E, 26.80') to a calculated point 60.00 feet right of
Engineer's centerline Point of Tangency 39+35.20 BK = 39+31.21 AH;

Page 4 of 9



Exhibit *A"

Thence, S 73042'43" E, a distance of 235.68 feet, to a calculated point 50.00 feet
right of Engineer's centerline Station Equation 41+66.89 BK = 41+70.87 AH;

Thence, S 73042'43" E, a distance of 14.86 feet, to a calculated point on the
eastern property line of the tract owned by Weyerhaeuser Timber Holdings, Inc.
and, coincidentally, the western property line of the tract owned by Bob and Pam
Young, 60.13 feet right of Engineer's centerline Station 41+84.60;

Thence, along said eastern propefty line of the tract owned by Weyerhaeuser
Timber Holdings, Inc., N O2oI9'L2" E, o distance of 36.63 feet, to a calculated point
on said southern right of way boundary of Black Rock Road, 24.47 feet right of
Engineer's centerline Station 4L+76,7Li

Thence, along said southern right of way boundary of Black Rock Road, the
following seven course:

1. N 78"17'27" W, a distance of 6.04 feet, to a calculated point 36.06 feet right
of Engineer's centerline Station Equation 46+66.89 BK = 4L+70.87 AH;

2. N78oL7'27" W, a distance of 139.35 feet, to a calculated point 36.06 feet
right of Engineer's centerline Station 40+27.98;

3. S 85o13'24" W, a distance of 35.24 feet, to a calculated point 48.72 feet
right of Engineer's centerline Station 39+95.10

4. N 80027'43" W, a distance of 47.21feet, to a calculated point 54,27 feet
right of Engineer's centerline Station 39+48,2t;

5. N 60046'41" W, a distance of L7.45 feet, to a calculated point44.50 feet
right of Engineer's centerline Point of Tangency 39+35.20 BK =
39+31.2L AH;

6. N 60046'41" W, a distance of 39.72 feet, to a calculated point44'50 feet
right of Engineer's centerline Station 39+03.26;

7. N 46011'16" W, a distance of 56.59 feet, to a calculated point 32.58 feet
right of Engineer's centerline Station 38+56.58;

Thence, continuing along said southern right of way boundary of Black Rock Road,
on the arc of a 333.20 foot radius circular curve to the right, a distance of 42.t0
feet, (Long Chordl N 47059'11" W, 42.07') to a calculated point 33.54 feet right of
Engineer's centerline Station 38+19.90;

Parcel 002-03 contains an area of 6,500 square feet or 0.15 acres (Int.) more or
less.

Page 5 of 9



Exhibit *A"
Parcel OO2-O4

A tract of land lying in the Southwest Quarter of Section L7, Township 0B South,
Range 06 West, of the Willamette Meridian, Polk County, Oregon and being a

portion of the tract of land conveyed to WeyerhaeuserTimber Holdings, Inc., a

Delaware corporation by Special Warranty Deed, recorded under Auditor's File

Number 2022-009411, on August L5,2022, records of Polk County, Oregon; Said
dedication being a strip of land along the southern right of way of Black Rock Road
and being furthered described as follows:

Beginning at a calculated point on the northern right of way boundary of Black Rock
Road, as legalized by the Polk County board of Commissioners Order 19-06 and
depicted by CS16421,30.80 feet left of Engineer's centerline Station 4t+I1.17 and
being N 53045'50" W, a distance of 44t.09 from the South Quarter Corner
of Section 17, Township 8 South Range 6 West, Willamette Meridian and being the
True Point of Beginning;

Thence, along the western property line of the tract owned by Weyerhaeuser
Timber Holdings, Inc. and the eastern property line of the tract owned by Alice Ross

McAllister, on the arc of a 508.34 foot radius circular curve to the right, a distance
of 61.10 feet, (Long Chord: N 45008'24" W,61.06') to a calculated point 60.00 feet
left of Engineer's centerline Station 40+57.55;

Thence, leaving said western propefty line, 5 73042'43" E, a distance of 109.34
feet, to a calculated point 60.00 feet left of Engineer's centerline Station Equation
41+66.89 BK = 4L+70.87 AH;

Thence, S 16017'17" W, a distance of 24.74 feet, to a calculated point lying on said
northern right of way boundary of Black Rock Road , 35.26 feet left of Engineer's
centerline Station Equation 41+66.89 BK = 41+70.87 AH;

Thence, along said northern right of way boundary of Black Rock Road,
N 78o17'27" W, a distance of 55.89 feet, to a calculated point 30.80 feet left of
Engineer's centerline Station 4t+L1.17 and lying at the True Point of Beginning.

Parcel OO2-04 contains an area of 2,286 square feet or 0.05 acres (Int.) more or
less.

Parcel OO2-O5

A tract of land lying in the Southwest Quarter of Section L7, Township 08 South,
Range 06 West, of the Willamette Meridian, Polk County, Oregon and being a

portion of the tract of land conveyed to Weyerhaeuser Timber Holdings, Inc,, a

Delaware corporation by Special Warranty Deed, recorded under Auditor's File

Number 2022-009411, on August L5,2022, records of Polk County, Oregon; Said
dedication being a strip of land along the southern right of way of Black Rock Road

and being furthered described as follows:

Page 5 of 9



Exhibit rrA"

Beginning at a calculated point on the southern right of way boundary of Black Rock
Road, as legalized by the Polk County board of Commissioners Order 19-06 and
depicted by CS16421, 26.05 feet right of Engineer's centerline Station 42+86.36
and being N 50o18'17" W a distance of 26L.05 feet from the south quarter section
corner of Section 17, Township 8 South Range 6 West, Willamette Meridian and
being the True Point of Beginning;

Thence, along the western propefty line of the tract owned by Weyerhaeuser
Timber Holdings, Inc. and the eastern property line of the tract owned by Bob and
Pam Young, S 20o53'25" W, a distance of 14.39 feet, to a calculated point 40.00
feet right of Engineer's centerline Station 42+83.00;

Thence, leaving said the western property line, S 86058'40" E, a distance of 74.80
feet, to a calculated point lying on said southern right of way boundary of Black
Rock Road,38.92 feet right of Engineer's centerline Station 43+53.69;

Thence, along said southern right of way boundary of Black Rock Road,
N 75o57'57" W, a distance of 7L.70 feet, to a calculated point 26.2L feet right of
Engineer's centerline Station 42+86.36 and lying at the True Point of Beginning.

Parcel 002-05 contains an area of 5L2 square feet or 0.01 acres (Int.) more or less.

Parcel OO2-06

A tract of land lying in the Southwest Quarterof Section 17, Township 08 South,
Range 06 West, of the Willamette Meridian, Polk County, Oregon and being a

portion of the tract of land conveyed to Weyerhaeuser Timber Holdings, Inc., a

Delaware corporation by Special Warranty Deed, recorded under Auditor's File
Number 2022-009411, on August L5,2022, records of Polk County, Oregon; Said
dedication being a strip of land along the southern right of way of Black Rock Road
and being furthered described as follows:

Beginning at a calculated point on the northern right of way boundary of Black Rock
Road, as legalized by the Polk County board of Commissioners Order 19-06 and
depicted by CS16421, 33,39 feet right of Engineer's centerline Station 43+09.97
and being N 37o31'32" W, a distance of 281.94 feetfrom the south quaftersection
corner of Section 17, Township 8 South Range 6 West, Willamette Meridian and
being the True Point of Beginning;

Thence, leaving the northern right of way boundary of Black Rock Road,
N 89020'50" E, a distance of 94.89 feet, to a calculated point 35.00 feet left of
Engineer's centerline Station 44+10.00;

Thence, N 69031'08" E, a distance of 92.63 feet, to a calculated point 55.00 feet
left of Engineer's centerline Station 45+O7.AOi

Page 7 of 9



Exhibit *A"

Thence, along the arc of a 620.00 foot radius circular curve to the left, a distance of
66.37 feet, (Long Chord : N 74046'18" E, 66.34') to a calculated point 55'00 feet left
of Engineer's centerline Station 45+80.06 Point of Tangency;

Thence, N 71o42'17" E, a distance of 3.83 feet, to a calculated point 55.00 feet left
of Engineer's centerline Point of Tangency 45+83'09;

Thence, along the eastern property line of the tract owned by Weyerhaeuser Timber
Holdings, Inc. and the western property line of the tract owned by Boyd B.

Lamprecht,
S 01055'27" W, a distance of 26.07 feet, to a calculated point lying on said northern
right of way boundary of Black Rock Road, 30.51 feet left of Engineer's centerline
Station 45+73.83;

Thence, along said northern right of way boundary of Black Rock Road,

S 71o33'18" W, a distance of L5.76 feet, to a calculated point 29.63 feet left of
Engineer's centerline Station 45+57.22;

Thence, continuing along said northern right of way boundary of Black Rock Road,

on the arc of a 510.00 foot radius circular curve to the right, a distance of 236.54
feet, (Long Chord: S 84o50'31'W, 234.43') to a calculated point 33.39 feet right of
Engineer's centerline Station 43+09.97; Said point lying atthe Point of Beginning.

parcel 002-06 contains an area of 2,12t square feet or 0.04 acres (Int.) more or
less.

Temporary Construction Easement OO2-O4b

A tract of land lying in the Southwest Quarter of Section 17, Township 08 South,
Range 06 West, of the Willamette Meridian, Polk County, Oregon and being a

portion of the tract of land conveyed to Weyerhaeuser Timber Holdings, Inc., a

belaware corporation by Special Warranty Deed, recorded under Auditor's File

Number 2022-009411, on August L5, 2022, records of Polk County, Oregon; Said

dedication being a strip of land along the southern right of way of Black Rock Road

and being furthered described as follows:

Beginning at a calculated point on the northern right of way boundary of Black Rock

Road, as legalized by the Polk County board of Commissioners Order 19-06 and
depicted by CS16421, 30.80 feet left of Engineer's centerline Station 4I+L1.17 and
being N 53o45'50" W, a distance of 44L.09 from the South Quafter Corner of
Section 17, Township 8 South Range 6 West, Willamette Meridian;

Thence, along the western property line of the tract owned by Weyerhaeuser
Timber Holdings, Inc. and the eastern property line of the tract owned by Alice Ross

McAllister, on the arc of a 508.34 foot radius circular curve to the right, a distance
of 61.10 feet, (Long Chord: N 45008'24"W,61.06') to a calculated point 60,00 feet
left of Engineer's centerline Station 40+57.55 and being the True Point of
Beginning;

Page 8 of 9



Exhibit rrA"

Thence, continuing along the western property line, on the arc of a 508.34 foot
radius circular curye to the right, a distance of 68.32 feet, (Long Chord: N

37050'46" W,68.27') to a calculated point 100.00 feet left of Engineer's centerline
Station 40+02.22;

Thence, leaving said western property line, S 73042'43" E, a distance of L64.67
feet, to a calculated point 100.00 feet left of Engineer's centerline Station Equation
41+66.89 BK = 4t+70.87 AH;

Thence, S 36003'13" E, a distance of 96.01 feet, to a calculated point 36.97 feet
left of Engineer's centerline Station 42+50.00 and lying on said northern right of
way boundary of Black Rock Road;

Thence, along said northern right of way boundary of Black Rock Road,

N 7BoL7'27" W , a distance of 74.92 feet, to a calculated point 35.26 feet left of
Engineer's centerline Station Equation 41+66.89 BK = 41+70.87 AH;

Thence, N 16017'17" E, a distance of 24.74 feet, to a calculated point lying on said
northern right of way boundary of Black Rock Road, 60.00 feet left of Engineer's
centerline station Equation 41+66.89 BK = 41+7O-87 AH;

Thence, N 73042'43" W, a distance of 109.34 feet, to a calculated point 60.00 feet
left of Engineer's centerline Station 40+57.55 and lying at the True Point of
Beginning.

Temporary Construction Easement 002-04b contains an area of 7,94L square feet
or 0.18 acres (Int.) more or less.

Page 9 of 9



-mncxtu 
srR[Er /Bt ct< Roc( RoAD - PARcEt q]21

u,FYFNHAEIJSIN

ID TYPE RADIUS
UNEOR cun E

IFNG?}I

ot I lnp N/A N/A s5f2432trW 22.&', N/A

n2 tihe N/A N/A s35'47',21'W q{l lxll N/A

03 Line N/A N/A 2fi.87', N/A

ol 6q5.m, Lt 105.79' ldq 8s

0q Linp N/A N/A <?R.??'10(W 5A.411 N/A
(5 t{q m, Rt s71./6'42trW 175.Gt' lnq ltt
a7 I inr N/A N/A N74'€'.t5',W qs aq, NIA

08 ilne N/A N/A N66.q5.!1trW 2as.68, N/A

lJne N/A N/A ir72'1!t'10"W 197.15' N/A

to I ln. N/A N/A N7259'O'lilW tqo qnl N/A

11 Li ne N/A N/A N71./A'1iilW 138.(B' N/A
I lnc N/A N/A N72'59{!t"W rl0.7s' N/A

ttr Lln. N/A iltt.dnrl t{w 177 42. N/A

t1 Lin€ N/A N/A N7F1727'W 5.04, N/A

15 I Inp it/A N/A N7f1727,W 139.35', N/A

t6 tlnE N/A N/A snq.t1?l(w 3q.24 N/A

17 Une N/A N,/A N8d2743"W 47.zt', N/A
tt llna N/A N/A 17 Aq N/A

19 Une N/A N/A N6fa5,a1"w 39.72' N/A
'r.1 I ln. N/A N/A N46.11.16.'w N/A

)7 iurue 333.20' Rt 12.o7 42.10

22 [ine N/A N/A N7117'27,W s5.st' N/A
I lhc N/A N/A N75'S7'57'W 77 7?t N/A

)i llne N/A N/A (?t.?Tttnw 15 761 N/A

'R
qtn an, nr <er.ilttnw tri dtl ,a6 qd

o R_rc uc20 1 6( t ), M ttchelt street
and gla* Rock Road Reconstructlon

Surveyed by:
F E DERAL H IGHWAY ADNIN ISTRANON
610 East sth Street
Van@uver, WA 9866t
Dale: Novembcr, 2018

Drawlng by:
USDOT/fHWNWFLHD
Date: August, 2027

Survey Peilormed wlth:

BASIS OF BEANNGS &
COORDINATES:

Oregon North SPCS NAO3 (201t)

Ofthometrlc elevatio$ based on the
NAVDS8 GEOID'2b

Unlts : Intematlonal Feet

PoLK COUNIY, OREGON
RIGHT-OF.WAY
Descrlptlon of Land:
Parxel 002, Weyerhaeuser company
220 occldental Ave. s.
seattle, wA 98104

T.085. R.06W., Wllamette Mcridian
Sealon 17: Slz

Rlght-of-Way ln Acrcs

Total Row thts Exhlblt: 4.67

ExBAng ROW thls Exhlblt: 3.66

Aquired ROW this Exhibtt: 1.01

Const, Easement this Exhibtt: 0,18

shcet l of 4 EXHIBI1 A



OR_qOLK_2016(!), l4ltchell Street
and ale* Rock Road Reconstructlon

Surveyed by:
FE D EPdl H IGHWAY ADM I N I STRANO N
610 East 

'th 
Street

Vancouver, WA 98661
Date: Novamber,2018

Date: August,2021

Dmwlng by:
USDOT/FHWA/WFLHD

Scale ln f€€t
E=E-l-ll

7s so 25 0 7s 150

survey Performed wlth:

8ASI5 OF BEARINGS &
COORDINATES:

Oregon North SrcS NAD3 (2ot1)

Orthometdc elevations based on the
NAVDgg GEOIDI2b

Unlf.s : I ntematlonal Fect

MERIDIANT. 08 S., R. 06 W.,
80r8'28" (Rr)a-

R-

N5400t'37"E

a=
R=

t4,64'
s02013'o9'w
84,67'

0

77'

+

83.1 1'38" (Rr)
r95,00
t73,ll'
283,r4'

N

t

+
I

i:
55.97'
N480s0,o0"E

l r"il'30" (Ri)
1.080,00'
r05.82'
210.96'36,65'

R- 1,850,00'
L- 85.43'
Chod:
85.42',
N47630'38"8

seAlTLE, WA,98104

N41.24'08'E
PARCEL OO2.O1

R- 1,125.00'
L- 219,75'
Chotd:
219.40'
N43"t4'15'E

cr?u oR

Le

..e;ciline,-toc n/ POBOXS4

( 66r)
WEYERHAEUSER COMPANY
22O OCCIOENTAL AVE S

rcLK COUNTY, OREGON
NGHT.OF.WAY
Dascrlptlon of Land:
Parcel 002, weyerhaeuser company
220 Occldental Ave. S.
Seattle, WA 98104

T.085. R.06W,, Wlllamette Mettdlan
Section 77: SEY.SWY.

Rlght-of-Way In Acres

Total ROW thls Exhlblt: 4.67

Exlstlng ROW this Exhiblt: 3.66

Acqulred ROW this Exhlblt: t.o1

Const. Easement this Exhibit: 0.18

Sheet 3 ot 4 EXIIIBIT A

a.
R.

It)

R- 105,tN'
L- 83.t0'
Chord:
80.9'',
N600t8'51'E

COMPANY

LEGEND:

l-l Prowsed abht of waY

A. 2038'45'(
R- r,900'00'
Ta 43.88'

c*d6r":r L- ez.zc'

220 ACCIDENTAL AVE S
SEATTLE, WA,98104



OR-POLK-2 0 1 6 ( I ), M itchel t Stree t
and Black Rock Road Reconstrucfion

SuNeyed by:
F E DE RAL H IG HWAY ADM I N I STRATIO N
610 East 

'th 
Street

Vancouver, WA 98661
Date: November, 2018

Drawlng by:
USDOT/FHWA/WFLHD
Date: August, 2021

Sale ln fe€t

=FF-t_t75 s0 25 0 75 r50

Suryey Performed wlth:

EASIS OF EEARINGS &
COORDINATES:

oregon Notth Srcs NAD3 (2011)

Orthometric elevatlons based an the
NAVD&8 GEOIDI2b

Unlts: Intematlonal Feet

\

b

\-/

rn
<r

7

.o5'

s., R, 06 W.,
ETTE MERIDIAN

T,08
WILljM

TIES DETAIL
oO2-O3 to O02-O6

N50.18'17"W, 26t
to 26.05' Rtght of
CL Sta 42+86.36

rcLK COUNTY, OREGO/V
RIGHT.OF.WAY
Descrlptlon of Land:
Parcel 0O2, Weyerhaeuser Company
220 Occidental Ave, S,
seaxle, wA 98104

T.085. R.06W,, Willamette Meddian
section 77: SEltSWl< a swYtselt

Rlght-of-Way ln Actes

Total ROW thls Exnblt: 4.67

Existing ROW this Exhiblt: 3.66

Acquired ROW thls Exhibit: 1.01

Const, Ease/rent tt ls Exhlbit: 0.18

sheet4o.f4 EXllllllrA

Rr
26.81'.

l!
&

oR.

s73042'43'E
36,63',
N02"t9't2"E

a\

s42"0547"E
117.47',

s70048'50'E
235.68'Gsa)

LEGEND:
t4.39',
s20053'25'WYOUNGPrcposed Rlglrt ol Way

Consfrvctlon E *ment
Q
w

Chold:
25.80'

IIEYERHAEUS€R CWPANI 573O4243'E
22O OCCIDENTAL AVE 5
SEAITLE. W^, 9AtO4

iI,?giifl. 
"^ 

e',,of,; lfffir'(Lt) 2o
T' 210. l3'
lr 407.43.

& PAII



oR-rc LK_2O t 6( t ), tviltdntl Street
and Btack Rock Roed Reconstruction

SuNeyed by:
FEDE ML H IGHWAY AD II' I N I SI&,NON
610 East sth Street
VancouveL WA 98661
Date: November, 20t8

Drawlng by:
usDoT/F IWA/WFLHD
Date: August,2027

Scal. ln fGCt

FFF-I-I
75 50 25 0 75 r50

Suvey Peiormed wlth:

AASIS OF EEANNGS &
COORDINATES:

Oregon North SrcS NAD3 (2011)

Ofthometdc elevations based on the
NAVD88 GEOID'26

UnlE: Intematlonal Feet

N
T. 08 S,, R. 06 W., WILIIMETTE MERIDIAN

Rr
Tr

R.
t!

R- 1,045.00'
L- 82,39'

3t.16'
N02008.ol"E

trl 40.31',
s55.45'28'-E

135.O5'
s72052',58'E

\
8^

e78
vs

'22"E

403r'02- (Rr
l,o0o,0o'
39.44',
78,84'

15.43',
NO2008',0t"E

('@
WEYERHAEUSER CAMPANY
220 OCCIDENIAL AVE S
SEATTLE, WA, 98104

25.50'
s84.11',34"8

R- 1O5,0O'
L- 83.10'
chord:
80,95'
N60r18',51'E

Oprd:
82,37'
s70037t27'E

252,2A'
s72052'58'E

PARCEL
002-0t

Po.LK COUNTY, OREGO/V
RIGHT.OF.WAY
Descrlptlon of Land:
Patl"f;l 002, Weyethaeuser Company
22o occldental Ave. S,
Seattle, WA 98104

r.085, R,06W,, Wlamatte lileridian
sectlon t7: sE%SwY.

Right-of-Way in Ades

Total ROw thls Exhlblt: 4.67

Exlstlng ROw this Exhlblt: 3,66

Acguired ROW this Exhlbit: 1.01

const Easerncnt tfirs Exhiblt: 0,18

Sheet2of4 EXHIBITA

PARCEL OO2.02

t7

10,13'.
so2"08'ot

30.97',
s8zo17'43"E

209.531
s72.52',58',E

20

18

19

N02"08'01"E, 409.93',
to E ng I nee,r s centertlne
Station 13+94,77

(:@
WEYERHAEUSER COMPANY
220 OCCIOENTAL AVE S
SEATTLE, WA,98104

A- 28o38r52" (Lt)
R. 300.00'
T= 76.50'
L= 150,00'

LEGEND:

f-l prcw*a eEftotway




